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Narrative Report

Introduction

This narrative provides an overview for Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council,
and is an accompanying narrative for the 2020/21 Annual Audited Accounts.

It sets the context of the Council, outlining corporate governance, performance requirements and
financial performance.

The Audited Annual Accounts 2020/21 can be found in the main body of this report.

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2021 is as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in the
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2021 (the Code) and the
Department for Communities Accounts Directions, Circular LG 08/2021. It is the purpose of this
foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council's
finances during the financial year 2020/21 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows
approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts.

The purpose of the Narrative Report is to provide information on the Council, its main objectives and
strategies and the principal risks it faces.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group
financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council does not have material interests in such
bodies and accordingly is not required to prepare group financial statements.

The Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 43, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services
in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded
from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may
be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 44, shows the movement in the year on the different reserves
held by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure
or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable reserves’. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, further details of
which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Local
Tax purposes. The 'Net increase/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves’ line shows the
statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves
undertaken by the Council.



The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 45, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the
Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services,
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use
(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or
repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that the Council is not able to use to provide
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services
if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers
of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Corporate Governance

Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council has 41 democratically elected members,
representing 7 District Electoral Areas.

Armagh Banbridge Craigavon District Electoral Areas
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The Council meets once a month to discuss, oversee and ratify decisions taken by Committees. It
has 5 Committees that meet monthly and a Performance and Audit Committee that meets quarterly.
An Annual General meeting is held each year when a Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor are
elected. Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Committees are also elected at the annual generai meeting.
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The six committees that report to full council meetings.

Council have wide ranging responsibilities, making strategically important decisions that will affect
future generations, and it is in this context that everyone is encouraged to engage with their
elected members so that we can co-create a borough in which we are all proud to live, work, visit,
learn and invest.

Council operates within the Strategic Planning Framework, which sets out the various components
of the planning framework bringing together specific priorities, aims and ambitions of the Borough in
the decision-making process. It links the overarching Council objectives to service and individual
work plans, making clear the contribution individuals make towards achieving strategic outcomes. It
provides a mechanism to establish and implement an integrated way of communicating and
implementing objectives throughout Council so that all plans are clear and ‘joined up’, known as the
‘golden thread’. Connecting the ‘golden thread’ from the Community Plan and Corporate Plan
through departmental, service and individual plans shows how the plans all fit together.

This helps to ensure that there is a strong focus on the achievement of outcomes at every level of
the Council for the benefit of customers, residents and communities. The ‘golden thread’ is
demonstrated in Diagram 1 below.



Diagram 1
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Corporate Plan

The Corporate Plan 2018-2023 is the roadmap for delivering the Community Plan, the overarching
strategy for the borough, which was developed by all the relevant statutory partners in consultation
with local people and communities. It also sets out the strategic direction on a broader scale, outlining
plans to promote the borough on a local, regional, national and global stage to attract investment to
the area. It identifies 30 commitments to contribute to the vision: “a healthy, happy and connected
community, a vibrant and sustainable economy and appealing places for living, working and
learning.”

To achieve these commitments, and deliver on services and activities, Council focus on 4 corporate
themes:

- Committed Council

- Economy

- Community

- Place

The structure (up to 30" June 2021) adopted by Council to deliver services and activities to local
ratepayers was based on four separate Directorates, namely: Performance, People; Place, Position

Detailed below are the key operational services/activities delivered within each Directorate:

e Performance Directorate includes Finance, ICT & Procurement, Human Resources &
Organisational Development, Governance & Democratic Services and Performance & Audit:

* People Directorate includes Environmental Services, Environmental Health, Health &
Recreation, and Community Development;
Place Directorate includes Economic Development, Regeneration, Tourism, Arts & Culture:

« Position Directorate includes Planning, Building Control, Estates & Assets Management and
Community Planning.

A copy of the Corporate Plan can be found at the following link:
https://www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/council/corporate-publications/




This past year has seen a major change for Council as an organisation. it has forced a radical
change in operational practices, a rethink of service delivery, and the need to adapt to many
unforeseen circumstances. The associated lockdown and restrictions has had an adverse impact
on council’s finances, putting additional financial strain through the loss of income, which council
relies on to help offset costs such as fixed overheads including staff costs, security and other
premises costs.

With this in mind and to remain focused on continuing to deliver efficiencies and savings, in
October 2020 Council commenced a review of its organisational leadership structure, as part of our
Financial Review and Transformation Project. The new organisational leadership was agreed and
implemented from 1%t July 2021.

In February 2021, Council agreed to proceed with implementation of recommendations from the
review.

Other Key Strategies:

Council has developed and implemented a number of key strategies over the years, including
Recovery and Growth Framework, ‘Connected’ Community Plan (2017-2030), ‘Transform’ Tourism
Strategy (2017-2022) and ABC Play Strategy (2018-2026) to improve the lives of everyone in the
area.

In February 2020, the Council launched an ambitious framework aimed at helping the local economy
to quickly recover and forge a path to future inclusive growth. The ABC Recovery and Growth
Framework focuses on how Council can create the right social and economic conditions to help the
borough recover from the pandemic and drive sustainable long-term growth for the region.

Link as follows: hitps:/www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/abc-recovery-and-growth-
framework-sets-out-roadmap-to-rejuvenate-economy/

The Council continues to progress the new Local Development Plan for the Borough which when
finalised will allow the Borough’s economy to develop further and meet the demands of a growing
population. Stage 1 of this process has been completed with the publication of the Preferred
Options Paper and officers are now working towards stage 2 - the Draft Plan Strategy. The Plan
Strategy will set out a clear vision and growth strategy for the Borough, supported by policies
focussed on facilitating sustainable development. The 3rd and final stage of the LPP - the Local
Policies Plan - which will deal with locally specific land use policies and proposals, will be prepared
following the adoption of the Plan Strategy.

Strategies form a part of our day-to-day business and are set out in our Departmental Business
Plans.

The Council has also an extensive capital programme, with capital funds directed at a programme
of work across the Borough designed to improve quality of life and deliver on corporate plan
outcomes. This is underpinned by sound capital finance planning within the context of the rate
setting process. It is also delivering support for rural areas and carrying out a number of
environmental improvement schemes in towns and villages throughout the Borough. This is in
addition to the delivery of a digital connectivity project, to assist with the transformation of public
services and increasing use of online services, EU funding to support peace and reconciliation and
promote social and economic stability and funding to enhance and regenerate town centres. The
council also provides grant funding every year in financial assistance to various community groups.



Performance & Continuous Improvement:

Performance Requirements:

As a Council, Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council has a statutory duty under
the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, to publish improvement objectives each year
which set out the key improvements Council aims to deliver.

The aim of our Performance Improvement Plan is to set out what we wilt do in the year ahead to
secure continuous improvement in service delivery and bring about improvement against at least
one of the following seven improvement areas as stipulated in the Local Government Act (NI) 2014:

;.’; Service
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Essentially, improvement is about making things better, with continuous improvement focusing on
ensuring sustainable, ongoing improvements to the way we as a council work and deliver our
services.

Council's annual Performance Improvement Plan sits within the Strategic Planning Framework,
which guides the strategic planning process and service delivery arrangements. Whilst the
Performance Improvement Plan focuses specifically on key Performance Improvement Objectives,
Council seeks to bring about improvement in other areas of service delivery. Planned improvements
in our day-to-day business are set out in Departmental Business Plans and in other strategic actions
plans.

Last year (February 2020) Council approved draft Performance Improvement Objectives for
2020/21. Whilst the 8 week consultation was initiated, it was during the period when the Covid 19
pandemic began to impact. During April — July 2020, Council continued to liaise with the
Department for Communities (DfC) seeking guidance/consideration of options in relation to the
impact of Covid 19 and 2020-21 Performance Improvement Plan.

In August 2020, Council received confirmation from DfC that there was no requirement for Council
to publish a Performance Improvement Plan for 2020/21. In June 2021 DfC confirmed that a
Performance Improvement Plan for the year 2021/22 would be required, however the publication
date would be extended from the normal statutory deadline of 30 June to 30 September when the
annual Performance Self-Assessment Report for 2020/21 would also be due for publication.

Al Council performance related documents can be viewed on our website:

hitps.//www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/council/performance-improvement



Continuous Improvement

As the second largest Council in Northern Ireland, we are now expected by Elected Members, local
residents, businesses and other stakeholders to provide services which are better, more efficient
and effective than they were before Local Government Reform in 2015, as we continue on our
transformation journey.

Our Corporate Plan 2018-2023 outlines our ongoing commitments to provide high quality, efficient
and effective public services, facilities, projects and programmes.

The Council’s performance improvement processes drive and ensure that all of our services
continually improve their performance in relation to what they do, how they do it and the cost
involved. This will help us provide the right services in the right way to meet the needs of our
customers and to improve customer experience and satisfaction. Service reviews are an important
part of that journey and a number of service reviews are ongoing.

In terms of continuous learning and improvement, Council's Performance Management Frameéwork
continues to be implemented and embedded into service delivery, as a key driver for continuous
improvement across all functions, departments and service areas.

The implementation of Council’'s Performance Manager software system —ensures a consistent ‘One
Councif’ approach across the organisation in terms of performance and progress reporting. It
provides a better alignment to the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 and our Corporate Commitments.
The performance software system is now fully embedded in all departments and includes
management reporting of progress against business plans.

Council’s Annual (Performance Self Assessment) Report provides information on Council’s
performance on the previous year, gives detail on issues identified through monitoring and review,
as well as reference to any planned/implemented improvements.

This is published on Council’s website at: www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk

Risk:

Risk Management is about managing threats and opportunities so that the Council is in a stronger
position to deliver its objectives and is an essential business tool that encourages innovation and
enterprise, not risk adversity. Risk Management includes identifying and assessing risks and then
responding to them to ensure effective controls are in place. Failure to manage risk effectively may
result in financial losses, disruption to services, bad publicity or claims for compensation.

Ali organisations face risk or obstacles to achieving their objectives. In order for Armagh City,
Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council to deliver its vision of serving and leading the people of
the Borough it is vitally important to:

Understand the nature of the risks we face

Be aware of the extent of these risks

Identify the level of risk that we are willing to accept
Assess our ability to control or reduce the risk
Implement corrective actions

Risk management is explicitiy linked to the business planning process to ensure it is embedded
across the Council. The Council has an agreed Risk Management Policy with corporate,
departmental and project Risk Registers developed and reported to the Performance and Audit
committee quarterly in line with the agreed policy. As with the performance management, risk
management is also embedded and supported with a risk management software system, ensuring
a one council approach.

An effective risk management process will:



Improve service delivery

Support business planning

Improve decision making

Improve performance and promote continuous improvement
Enhance communication between Departments

Improve accountability and reassure stakeholders

The management of risk within the organisation and any significant issues arising during the year
and/or areas of concern are also referenced in the Annual Governance Statement.

Annual Governance Statement:

The Council prepares a separate Annual Governance Statement, and this accompanies the financial
statements. Whilst the Annual Governance Statement can be reviewed in detail it is important to
reiterate that the effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls is examined in detail through the
work of Internal Audit. An annual Internal Audit Plan is approved by Council based on a needs and
risk assessment process that focuses resources on higher risk areas and meets the professional
standards required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Based on evidence from planned
audits and any special investigations, Internal Audit reports to the Performance & Audit Committee
on any major weaknesses that have been identified in the internal controls examined and highlights
where important improvements are considered necessary. The Annual Governance Statement is
included within these Accounts (Page 14)

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how the
funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, domestic and business rates) for the year
has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by
councils in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding
Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the
Council's directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting
practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

During the annual Estimates Process each year the Council has to ensure that it has adequate
resources to deliver the services expected by the local community, both business and non-business
alike. To this end in 2020/21 the Council projected a requirement of net funding in the amount of
£74.1m of which £67.0m was to be raised by way of Rates Income along with total projected Central
Government grant funding of approximately £6.9m (i.e. Rates Support Grant, Transferred Functions
Grants and De-Rating Grant} and a balance applied of £0.2m.

In February 2020 the Council approved budgets for the four Directorates as follows:

Performance Directorate: - £8.9m
People Directorate: - £38.5m
Place Directorate: - £6.7m
Position Directorate: - £7.3m

The Council also budgeted for various capital projects across Council and set aside approximately
£12.7m capital financing for this. Based on these figures, the Council set the District Rate and
combined with the Central Government Regional rate, are used to calculate the Borough Rates bills.
Details of the range of services provided from the rate setting process are detailed below:
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Financial Performance:

For the year ended 31 March 2021, there was an increase in the Council's total Usable Reserves
from £26.7m to £40.2m. The Council's approved net budget of £74.1m was supplemented by £2.2m
in year finalisation payment of district rates, additional one-off grant funding of £14m relating to Covid
19 and additional rates support grant of £1m. The total Net Operating Expenditure reported in the
CIES is £95.5m (this includes amounts for depreciation, impairments and other non-budget
accountancy adjustments}),

Capital expenditure during the year amounted to £9.8m. This included expenditure on a number of
projects and initiatives including the completion of the new South Lake Leisure centre (£2.9m),
expenditure on Play Parks across the Borough (£1.2m), Vehicles & Equipment (£0.5m), Outdoor
Leisure facilities (£1.4m) and Council Buildings and land (£3.8m).

The Council's financial accounts for the year ended 31% March 2021 are set out on pages 43 - 107
and consist of:

*» The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — the Council's main revenue
account covering income and expenditure on all services.

» The Movement in Reserves Statement — this shows the movement in and the accumulated
balances of reserves held by the Council at the year end. These are categorised as either
‘Usable’ (i.e. consideration can be given regarding utilising these amounts) or ‘Unusable’ (i.e.
resources for which a decision has already been made by Council regarding how these are
to be used e.g. the creation of specific reserves or funding towards one-off projects).

¢ The Balance Sheet — which sets out the Council’s assets and liabilities at the year end.
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» The Cash Flow Statement — this includes information regarding inflows and outflows of cash
arising from transactions for both revenue and capital.
e Notes to the Accounts.

During 2020/21 the gross expenditure incurred by Council on Continuing Operations amounts to
approximately £108.5m (2019/20 £103.7m). This was supplemented by income from various
sources including service users and grants of £16.9m (2019/20 £23.4m) resulting in net expenditure
on cost of services of £91.6m (2019/20 £80.3m). Service expenditure and income is summarised in

the following table:

Service Expenditure Gross Gross Income Net Expenditure
Expenditure
£'000 £000 £°000
Place Directorate 13,335 (2,764) 10,571
People Directorate 69,584 (9,854) 59,730
Position Directorate 12,672 (2,888) 9,784
Performance Directorate 8,873 (286) 8,587
Other Services 4,053 {1,151) 2,902
Continuing Operations 108,517 (16,943) 91,574

Exceptional funding received in response to the COVID-19 pandemic during 2020/21 is included in
the Financial Statements. Funding of £1.6m is included within the Continuing Operations above
and relates directly to specific COVID-19 projects. The balance relating to non-specific COVID-19
funding of £10.6m and Covid -19 capital grants unapplied of £1.8m is included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure within Non-specific Grant Income. The funding was
received from DIC (£10.6m), Dfl (£0.6m), DEARA (£1.5M) and HMRC (£1.3m). (19/20 DfC £0.25m
and HMRC £0.09M).

Material assets purchased during the year included expenditure of approximately £0.5m on vehicles
and equipment.

The Council utilised Capital Receipts of £0.15m to help fund short term assets. The Council has
utilised some of the earmarked reserves in year and increased its overall earmarked reserves by
providing additional funding of £1.25m for the Insurance Fund, £4.89m Covid Fund, £1.81m
unapplied capital grant (from Covid funding), £0.5m for the Transformation Fund, £1m for Backlog
Maintenance and £2m for Development fund. There was an increase in year of £2m to the General
Fund (from the opening balance position). This resulted in Total Usable Reserves increasing by
£13.6m over the course of the year.

Notes 2a and 2b include a breakdown of expenditure by Directorate across the Council as part of
the new requirements introduced in 2017/18 regarding Telling the Story and comparative figures are
included in an effort to provide as much information as possible to readers of the accounts.

The Council is required to ensure that property assets are revalued on a regular basis. This process
is undertaken annually for land and buildings. Following the 2020/21 revaluation exercise and taking
into consideration in year expenditure on capital additions, there was a downward movement of
£3.0m, decreasing from £244.0m to £241.0m, on the overall Net Book Value of fixed assets
(excludes Assets Held for Sale). The main area of note was the reclassification and transfer in the
Property Plant & Equipment Under Construction (i.e. Work-in-progress) of £47.1m, offset against an
increase in Buildings, and the impairment on the closure of 3 Leisure Centres. Information on Long
Term Assets is included in Note 11.
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The Council’s net pension liability increased by £31m from £75.2m to £106.2m and this is largely
due to changes in financial assumptions. Whilst the Council is obligated to include this liability within
its accounts there is no requirement for the Council to meet this liability immediately or to make a
one-off payment or to fund this from Reserves. There is therefore no perceived risk to the financial
standing of the Council resulting from this liability. Information regarding pensions are included in
Note 21.

There was no material change in the Council's statutory functions during the year and there were no
significant changes in accounting policies during the year.

The Council was able to continue to meet its financial liabilities through the use of reserves, and
internal and external borrowing. The Council also continued to service existing debt and at the end
of 2020/21 the total borrowing stood at £76.5m which was an increase of £3.5m on the 2019/20
position. This was due to spend during the year on capital projects such as South Lake Leisure
Centre.

Forward Planning

There continues to be a number of economic factors that can impact on local councils including
changes affecting the province following the departure from the European Union, long- term impact
of Covid, particularly with regards income generation, reduction in grants from central government,
inflation, interest rates, pay settlements and continued uncertainty globally within financial markets.

Within this challenging environment, the Council undertook a comprehensive review of expenditure
and pressures to identify opportunities for efficiencies and transformation moving forward and these
fed into the 2021/22 budget setting process. The Council is therefore content that the budgets for
the current financial year are robust. The intensive analysis that played an important part in the
2021/22 budget setting process will be further supported and enhanced moving forward through the
development of an updated Medium Term Financial Plan in 2021/22 and this will set out a robust
financial framework for proposed spending and investment over the next three financial years to
support the delivery of agreed corporate objectives.

The current Medium Term Financial Plan already includes for corporate and unavoidable pressures
as well as ensuring the protection of front-line services and in this regard, it is forecasting district rate
increases above the current levels of inflation. Therefore, in order to ensure that the ambitious
corporate programme is affordable, the proposed investment and enhanced service delivery will be
supported by various measures including efficiencies, transformation and service review, securing
value for money through procurement and effective treasury management and financial
management.

The Council always strives to provide local businesses and householders with a first class service
that is effective and efficient. In recognition of that, the Council's transformation and reform journey
continues with greater renewed prioritisation to ensure our ambitions are realised.

Business Continuity

The Council has built up a strong and healthy reserves balance which will enable it to deal with the
immediate financial challenges posed by COVID-19. The pandemic placed additional strain on the
organisation and continues to do so with on-going restrictions and controls, particularly with
regards to projected reductions in income from facilities and services as well as from business
rates. The Council also avails of grants from Central Government and these could also be
impacted upon due to pressures on the public purse. Any such reductions in funding are outside
the control of Council but this will be factored into considerations during the annual Estimates
process.
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In the 2020/21 financial year the Council has already made significant budget reductions of over
£5m in an effort to minimise losses, to protect services and to ensure the financial stability of the
organisation. There have also been a number of Recovery Working Groups established to help
mitigate against the impact of the pandemic, to feed into the risk management, business planning
and budgetary processes and to plan for the future post the pandemic.

The 2021/22 budgets will be continually kept under review on a monthly basis throughout the year
to determine the robustness of original projections and assumptions and whether reductions and/or
realignment of budgets will be required to ensure there will be a balanced budget at the year-end.
Budgetary control and financial management in the organisation has been supplemented by the
establishment of a Transformation and Efficiency Working Group to help identify further
opportunities to generate efficiencies and savings. This group will also play a pivotal role in the
2022/23 Estimates Process in terms of identifying areas where savings can be applied. Outputs
from the Working Group will also be useful in the development of a new Medium Term Financial
Plan.

The Council recognises the critical importance of identifying and managing COVID-19 issues whilst
protecting the organisation’s financial integrity and stability. Therefore, there will be a continual
process of review, reporting and revisions to budgets and financial plans as the Council moves
forward through this crisis.

Basis of preparation for Annual Audited Accounts 2020/2021

The Council’s annual accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended to present to
readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2020/21 financial year. The accounting
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. The Statement of
Accounts has been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.

The concept of materiality recognises that absolute accuracy in financial statements is rarely
possible. Therefore, the external audit is designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement or irregularity. A
matter is material if its omission or misstatement would reasonably influence the decisions of
the users of the financial statements.

There are also materiality thresholds to be adhered to and officers are obliged to make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have endeavoured to ensure
that as much information as possible has been presented to make the accounts as user
friendly as possibie within these limitations.

The remainder of this Report provides a detailed analysis of the Annual Audited Accounts 2020/21
for Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council.
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Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities for the
Statement of Accounts

The Council’s Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a councit shall
make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall
designate an officer of the council as its Chief Financial Officer and these arrangements shall
be carried out under the supervision of its Chief Financial Officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the
accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Performance & Audit Committee and by the Chief
Finance Officer on 16th September 2021.

The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s
Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows
for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

o observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

) follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting
policies on a consistent basis, and

® make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:

) keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and
. take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
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Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
Scope of Responsibility

Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money
is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The Council also has a duty under Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, Part 12:
Performance Improvement to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement having
regard to strategic effectiveness, service quality, service availability, fairness, sustainability,
efficiency and innovation.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its function,
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government. This statement explains how the Council meets the requirements of Regulation
4 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in
relation to the publication of an Annual Governance Statement.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values by
which the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to,
engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon
Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the
financial statements.

The Governance Framework

This section describes the key foundations of the Council’s governance arrangements. A
Council Code of Governance is in place and was last reviewed in December 2020. It is based
on the seven principles set out in the CIPFA/Solace ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government’. The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s
governance arrangements are summarised below:

Identifying and communicating the Council’s vision of its purpose and intended
outcomes for citizens and service users.

The ‘Strategic Planning Framework’ sets out the various components of the planning
framework bringing together specific priorities, aims and ambitions for the Borough. It seeks to
link the overarching Council objectives to service and individual work plans, making clear the
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contribution individuals make towards achieving strategic outcomes. It provides a mechanism
to establish and implement an integrated way of communicating and implementing objectives
throughout Council so that all plans are ciear and ‘joined up’, known as the ‘golden thread'.
Conrecting the ‘golden thread’ from the Community Plan and Corporate Plan through
departmental, service and individual plans show how the plans all fit together. This helps to
ensure that there is a strong focus on the achievement of outcomes at every level of the
Council for the benefit of customers, residents and communities. The ‘golden thread’ is
demonstrated in Diagram 1.

Diagram 1
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The diagram above illusirales the need for connections between all levels. This goldan thread is supported by engagement and
impravement processes, The plans listed above are ilustrative of the key plans, rather than an exhaustive list,

The Borough Community Plan gives us the WHY of what we are doing, providing a holistic
view of the needs and aspirations of our Borough and articulating them in 9 long term
outcomes. The Council's Corporate Plan explains WHAT we as the Council are doing to
contribute to these outcomes as well as outlining any other key objectives for us as an
organisation. And finally, departmental business plans detail the HOW.

The Corporate Plan has been developed and aligned to the Community Plan. It identifies four
main themes on which Council will deliver; Committed Council, Economy, Community and
Place. .

The Council have a statutory duty to put arrangements in place for continuous improvement.
Each year Council is required to develop a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP). The PIP
identifies objectives for the year ahead, and Councils actions to meet these objectives. It is
aligned to the Community Plan outcomes and Corporate Plan objectives and is subject to and
informed by public consultation. Paragraph 45 of the current guidance for Local Government
Performance Improvement (Local Government Circular 21/2016) states the suggested date for
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councils to publish their Improvement plan is by the end of June. The Department for
Communities (DfC) wrote to the 11 councils to confirm that councils were not required to
develop and publish a PiP for 2020/21 and the Performance Assessment Audit in 2020/21 was
therefore limited to looking back at 2019/20. NIAO intends to issue the report for this audit in
October 2021. Council will publish a PIP for 2021/22 by the extended deadline of 30 September
2021 and an annual Self-Assessment Report for 2020/21 will be published by 30 September
2021 in line with regulatory requirements.

Council has commenced work on a new Local Development Plan (LDP) for the Borough. In
March 2018 the Council published its Preferred Options Paper. It is currently preparing the
draft Plan Strategy which is the second stage of the Plan. Public consultation on the draft Plan
Strategy is expected to commence in 2022.

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan for 2020-2023 forms the financial framework from
which the Council develops its business plans with estimates approved by Council in February
each year.

In August 2020 Council agreed a Recovery Framework to guide the response and recovery to
the Covid 19 pandemic. This included a number of immediate and short term actions which
both supported the organisation’s internal response as well as shaping how the Council
supports the wider business and community sectors. A Medium Term Recovery Plan covering
the next 2 years to 2023 has been developed and is incorporated into departmental business
plans for 2021/22,

* Reviewing Council’s vision and its implications for the governance arrangements

The Community Plan is led by a Community Planning Strategic Partnership made up of senior
representatives from our statutory partners, elected members and representatives from the
community and business sectors. There are formal processes in place to monitor the progress
of the plan and ensure effective governance arrangements are in place for the successful
implementation of the plan. The Community Planning Strategic Partnership published its
Community Statement in November 2019.

The Councils Corporate Plan is due to be reviewed before 2023, The corporate themes and
commitments with the Corporate Plan are cascaded through the departmental business plans.
Six monthly and annual progress reports are presented to the relevant service committee.
During 2020/21 the business plans were reviewed due to the impact of the pandemic, with
Strategic Directors approval. No six monthly reports were presented to service committees and
with Elected Member approval the Strategic Directors and EMT continued to oversee quarterly
progress reports instead. Service Committees received the 2020/21 annual reports on
business plans in June 2021. An annual report and self — assessment for 2019/20 was
published by the end of September 2020 in line with statutory performance requirements.

The Council Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21 was approved by full Council on 11
February 2020 and is monitored via financial reports to the Governance, Resources and
Strategy Committee twice yearly.

The progress on the development of the Local Development Plan is reported through the
Planning Committee.

The Corporate Risk Register identifies the main risks associated with the achievement of the
Council's commitments/objectives and cross referenced within departmental business ptans.
The Executive Management Team and the Performance and Audit Committee review the
Corporate Risk Register quarterly.
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Measuring the quality of services for users ensuring they are delivered in accordance
with Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.

The performance improvement regime requires council to put arrangements in place to secure
continuous improvement to deliver outcomes for citizens/residents. The Council’s Performance
Management Framework was approved by Council in November 2019.

Council developed a Customer Care Strategy in 2017 to provide direction and a framework on
the Council’s approach to Customer Care with external customers such as residents,
businesses, visitors, public sector partners and other stakeholders as well as internally
between departments and services. The Customer Care Project Team take the lead in
delivering the strategy and overseeing the implementation of an annual customer care action
plan.

The 2020/21 Customer Care Action Plan was approved by Committee in October 2020 and
the Committee will receive the annua! progress report in the Action Plan in June 2021. A
review of the Strategy is planned to take place in 2021/22.

The Council strives to continue to improve its methods for obtaining customer feedback and
increase the numbers of service areas with baseline satisfaction levels. In 2021/22 Council
intends to review and develop service standards across departments.

Council has an approved Corporate Complaint'’s Policy and procedure to deal with
unsatisfactory customer/service user feedback.

The Council is subject to audit by the Local Government Auditor, within the Northern Ireland
Audit Office. The scope of auditors' work covers not only the audit of the Council's Financial
Statements, but also aspects of corporate governance, arrangements to secure the €conomic,
efficient and effective use of resources and an audit and assessment of the Council's
Performance Improvement duties. The Local Government Auditor makes an annual report on
the resuits of both the financial audit and separately the performance assessment audit, which
are published on the Council's website when received. In addition the internal audit function
within Council have undertaken some value for money reviews as part of the internal audit plan
which are reported through the P&A Committee.

¢ Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-
executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and
protocols for effective communication.

The structure detailed below, is designed to reflect the Council's Vision and Strategic Priorities
as set out in the Corporate Plan. A key element of the structure is to ensure a ‘One Council
approach by enabling cross Directorate working.

COUNCIL
Governance, Performance Planning & Economic
Resources & & Audit Regulatory | Development
Strategy Services

Each Committee has a defined Terms of Reference, documenting its roles and responsibilities.
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The minutes and associated reports for all Council and Committee Meetings are uploaded to
the Council's website with the exception of confidential minutes and reports. Full Council
meetings are audio recorded and uploaded to the Council website. These actions ensure that
the Council is communicating with the public in an open and transparent manner. Due to the
COVID pandemic and the restrictions imposed, Council put in place a number of interim
governance arrangements in May 2020. This enabled decisions to be taken by officers and
then Council and its Committees to meet ‘remotely’ and the public to view the meetings on
line.

The Constitution details the rules and procedures being followed by the Council and its
Committees when transacting business, primarily in accordance with the Local Government
(NI) Act 2014 and subsequent Standing Orders. The Council is conscious of the need to keep
the Constitution up to date and both the constitution and standing orders were reviewed during
2020/21.

The Council is committed to setting and securing the highest standards in decision making and
the Scheme of Delegation provides the framework for the powers delegated to Committees of
Council and to Senior Managers within the Council. Decisions made by officers under the
scheme are recorded and presented on a monthly basis to full council for information.

Council's Executive Management Team (EMT) meet regularly at least monthly to discuss
issues commensurate to the aims, objectives and priorities of Council. Heads of Department
meet twice per month and HoD and EMT meet jointly once per month.

Internal Communication systems include Council intranet, websites, staff newsletter, all user
emails, social media, written correspondence, working group minutes and a combination of
formal and informal team meetings. Council has a Senior Communications and Branding
Manager to oversee the further development of internal and external communications. During
the response and ongoing recovery phases of the pandemic Council’'s Communications and
Branding team had been an essential element to ensure internal and external communications
was targeted with improved methodology and alignment with other statutory partners.

An internal senior management structure was put in place to support a focus on recovery while
maintaining the delivery of services. This included the establishment of a Recovery Co-
ordination Group (RCG) of senior managers to oversee and coordinate recovery work through
a number of task groups looking at including Finance and Transformation, Human Resources
and Organisational Development, Place Based Operational Services and wider recovery.

Two member working groups (Covid 19 and Resources Recovery) were established to provide
a forum for debate and decision making to support the recovery process. With the resumption
. of Committees the matters covered by these working groups were subsumed within the
agendas of the Council's standing Committees. An emerging issues working group was also
established in 2020/21 and continues to operate in 2021/22.

* Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the
standards of behaviour for members and staff.

Codes of Conduct are in place for both staff and Elected Members and define the high ethical
values and standards of behaviour expected, to make sure that public business is conducted
with fairness and integrity. Both the Code of Conduct for Councit Members and the Code of
Conduct for staff are published on the Council's intranet and website. A revised Code of
Conduct for Local Government staff was adopted in March 2021.
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Councillors have received training in respect of the statutory code of conduct. A Register of
Members Interests is maintained and updated on an annual basis, or as and when required.
Conflict of interests is also a standing agenda item at each Committee and Council meeting.

Mandatory Code of Conduct training is offered twice per year for employees. A corporate
Conflict of Interest Policy is being developed. The Council has a wide range of policies and
procedures, which are subject to on-going review which reference the standards of behaviour
expected from all employees.

* Reviewing the effectiveness of Councils’ decision-making framework, including
delegation arrangements, decision making in partnerships and robustness of data
quality

The Constitution governs how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the
procedures followed to ensure efficiency, transparency and accountability to local people. The
Constitution is accessible on the Council’s website. The Council's Scheme of Delegation
provides the framework and guidance for the powers delegated to Committees of Council and
to Senior Managers. Both the Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegations were amended as
required during 2020/21 to take account of the various working groups established during the
pandemic.

The Council's Financial Regulations set out the overarching financial responsibilities of the
Council and its staff and provides the framework within which the Council’s financial affairs are
managed. The Financial Regulations were last reviewed and updated in February 2019. The
Procurement Handbook was also revised and updated during 2020/21.

Good data quality is required by the Council to plan, make its key decisions, and deploy its
resources for smooth operational performance. Council continues to endeavour to ensure data
is accurate, valid, reliable, timely, relevant and complete.

The Council is committed to working alongside partners and local communities in order to
deliver excellent services and has established and a facilitated a Community Planning
Strategic Partnership for the Borough. A Borough Community Engagement Strategy was
published in June 2019 which sets out the Community Planning partners’ aspirations, along
with the steps they will take together to make sure that people can be more involved in the
decisions that affect their lives.

As part of the Council's Assurance Framework, Strategic Directors and Heads of Department
are required to assess the adequacy of the risk management process and to provide 6 monthly
assurance statements which help inform the overall annual Governance Statement.

A Geographical Information Systems (GIS) Strategy was developed in 2020/21 and a
Corporate GIS Officer was appointed in 2020/21.

* Reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and managing risks
and demonstrating clear accountability

The Council has a Risk Management Policy in place which was last reviewed and updated in
February 2021. The Policy forms part of Council’s internal control and corporate governance
framework. The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed by the Executive Management Team and
presented to the Performance and Audit Committee quarterly. As outlined in the Risk
Management Policy, Departmental Risk Registers for one Directorate are presented on a
rolling basis to the Performance & Audit Committee. A comprehensive risk management
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software system is used to manage identified risks across all Departments and has assisted
in the further embedding of risk management across Council.

During audit engagements, Internal Audit review risk registers and controls cited to mitigate
the identified risks. Internal Audit will recommend actions to management where those actions
strengthen the system of governance, risk management and control.

» Ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are developed
and maintained

Council have developed a Fraud Policy (including a fraud response plan) and Whistleblowing
Policy, both approved by Council and local Trade Unions in 2019. The Whistleblowing Policy
has been reviewed to take account of the NIAO Raising Concern guidance and following
regional trade union approval will be circulated to all staff and made available on the intranet
and website. Fraud and whistleblowing investigations are reported quarterly to the
Performance and Audit Committee as a standing agenda item. Any suspected or attempted
fraudulent activities are investigated and reported to the NIAO and other appropriate channels.

The risk of fraud is identified and managed as part of the risk management process. The
Council prepares an Annual Fraud Report which summarises the work the Council undertakes
during the year to prevent, detect and investigate fraud and corruption.

Council delivered fraud awareness training to staff in the 2019/20 year. An e-learning fraud
moduie for all Council employees has been developed and is due be rolied out across the
Council in 2021/22.

* Ensuring effective management of change and transformation

The Senior Leadership Team and Council remain committed to ongoing harmonisation and
transformation of Council services. Specific transformation and development funds are
identified within estimates.

An Estimates and Efficiency Working Group and a Member Advisory Group are in place to
lead the transformation agenda across Council. A number of service reviews have been
completed / are in progress with ongoing implementation plans. The Indoor Leisure
Transformation Project was well progressed during 2020/21 with the opening of the South
Lakes Leisure Centre. Service review and transformation progress reports are brought to
EMT, the relevant service committee/Project Board.

In October 2020, Council initiated a review of its organisation leadership structure as part of
the Financial Review and Transformation Project to enable new strategic thinking and a shared
vision for the future of the Council as a high performing organisation. The results of this review
will be implemented in the 2021/22 year. The Efficiency and Transformation Programme will
be developed further in 2021/22, which will be of even more relevance given the societal,
operational and financial pressures as a result of the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic.

e Ensuring Council’'s financial management arrangements conform with the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial
Officer in Local Government (2010) and, where they do not, explain why and how
they deliver the same impact.

Council has designated the Chief Executive as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The CIPFA
Statement on The Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (the Statement) sets
out five principles that define the core activities and behaviours that belong to the role of the
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Chief Financial Officer in public service organisations and the organisational arrangements
needed to support them.

Principle 5 requires the CFO to be professionally qualified and be a member of an accountancy
body. Local Regulations in Northern Ireland do not require the CFO to be a professionally
qualified accountant nor for the role to be separated from that of the Chief Executive. The
Council is satisfied that the Chief Executive is supported by a number of fully qualified and
experienced staff within the Council who are members of various bodies within the
Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies (CCAB) and as such ensure the decisions
made by the CFO are based on sound technical knowledge and understanding.

e Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful,

Strategic Directors and Head of Department along with Senior Managers and staff are
responsible for ensuring compliance with relevant laws, regulations, internal policies and
procedures. The six monthly assurance statements provided to the Chief Executive and P&A
Committee provide an opportunity to reflect on this point. Council has appointed a Senior
Solicitor and is expanding the internal legal function in 2021/22. All employees and Elected
Members are required to act in compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct while
carrying out their duties and to declare any conflicts of interests. All committee reports are
obliged to highlight any financial implications.

Council’s Internal Audit function has a specific role in providing independent assurance to
Management and the Elected Members on the internal control, risk management and
governance arrangements of Council. Council also has access to advice from a range of
sources, including internal senior corporate managers in area such as Legal Services,
Corporate H&S, Information Governance, and Procurement, etc.

¢ Ensuring Council’s assurance arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010)
and, where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same impact.

The role referred to by CIPFA as the Head of internai Audit has an important role in delivering
the organisation’s strategic aims by championing best practice in governance, objectively
assessing the adequacy of governance and management of existing risks, commenting on
responses to emerging risks and proposed developments; and giving an objective and
evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and internal control.

The Internal Audit Manager fulfils the role of the ‘Chief Audit Executive/ Head of Internal Audit’
in accordance with the governance requirements of the CIPFA statement.

* Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit
Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities

The Performance & Audit Committee which meets quarterly, comprises of seven Members of
Council and two Independent Members. The Performance & Audit Committee operates in
compliance with the CIPFA Audit Committee best practice guidance including an annual review
of its effectiveness and performance which was deemed as effective during 2020/21. Included
within the Annual P&A Committee report is an action plan to support the further development
of this key Committee. Training was provided to the Performance and Audit Committee
Members in March 2020.

21



The core functions of the Performance & Audit Committee are summarised in a Terms of
Reference, which describe the arrangements in place to enable it to operate independently,
robustly and effectively.

¢ Whistleblowing and other processes for receiving and investigating complaints
from the public

The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and
accountability. It expects its employees who have serious concerns about anything improper
that is happening in the Council, to come forward and raise those concerns.

The Council has a Whistleblowing Policy which is on the Council website. The Policy has
recently been reviewed to take account of the NIAO Raising Concern guidance and is currently
being consulted on. [tis expected to be put in place and circulated to employees and placed
on the Council’s website during 2021/22.

As part of the Council's Customer Care Strategy, the Council is committed to providing
excellent services to the residents, businesses and visitors of the Borough. A Corporate
Customer Complaints Policy was developed and approved in April 2019 and available on the
Council website. The aim of the Palicy is to ensure all corporate complaints are dealt with in
a fair and consistent manner. Internal guidance was developed for complaint handlers and
complaints handling training was delivered during 2019. The internal guidance was reviewed
and updated in 2020. Compliments received are posted on the Council's intranet site which is
accessible to employees. The Council’s Equality Scheme contains a process for dealing with
any equality related complaints.

» Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

Council continued to deliver Elected Members' capacity building training throughout the
2020/21 year as part of Elected Member Development Plan. Council has achieved the highest
level of Member Charter with Charter Plus level 1 and 2 being retained in April 2021.

The Council's Learning and Development Policy sets out the Council’s commitment to the
development and training of employees. An annual corporate training plan for both staff and
elected Members was rolled out during 2020/21.

The draft People Strategy and draft Organisational Development Plan will be further developed
during 2021/22. Council is also working on piloting and roll out of a new Employee Appraisal
System.

» Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community
and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation

Council utilises various media by which to deliver internal and external communications, such
as the Council websites, publications, brochures, leaflets, social media and media
advertisements and broadcasts. The Council continues to explore ways to digitalize services
and use oniine technology and social media to enhance communication with residents,
customers, businesses and potential visitors to the Borough.

The Communications and Branding Team will further develop Council communications
strategies in 2021/22. A communications plan was established to deal with the Coronavirus
pandemic to keep our communities, businesses, Elected Members and staff informed.
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The Borough Link is the Council’s annual residents’ magazine, which is sent to over 86,000
households and despite the COVID pandemic was produced and circulated to residents.

All Council and committee meeting minutes are available on the Council website, with audio
recordings of full Council meetings available. The Local Government (Coronavirus) (Flexibility
of District Council Meetings) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2020 allowed for Council to hold
remote Council meetings from May 2020 and were streamed live.

Council has an Integration Strategy 2018-2022 in place which aims to support integration
between Council, local communities and ethnic minorities. The Integration Strategy forms part
of the Council's overall Good Relations Action Plan. The Council's Equality Scheme is a
statement of the Council's commitment to the promotion of equality of opportunity and good
relations and also outlines how Council meets its obligations under Section 75 of the NI Act
1998. A 5 year review of the Council’s equality scheme (2015-2020) was completed in
September 2020. Council publications can be requested in a number of different formats
including audio, braille and large print.

The Council is committed to openness and transparency and empowering communities to
contribute to decisions. A Borough Community Engagement Strategy was developed and
published in June 2018 with the Community Planning Strategic Partnership. A Community and
Voluntary Sector Panel was established in June 2018 as part of the Community Planning
partnership.

Council consults with various bodies in relation to important strategic or policy development
matters and a Consultation Policy was approved during 2020/21. Formal consultation
mechanisms are in place for statutory consultations specifically in relation to the Planning
process including the Statement of Community Involvement.

» Enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness of other public
service providers

Council delivers a range of services, both directly and indirectly to the residents/citizens of
Council. The Council has a range of mechanisms and plans in place for delivering effective
services which extend to the Community Plan, Corporate Plan, Business Plans, Strategies,
Action Plans and the Performance Management Framework.

Council works with a range of partners to develop and implement the Community Plan through
the Community Planning Strategic Partnership and is progressing the Local Development Plan
at the second stage in conjunction with relevant stakeholders.

There are effective governance and monitoring arrangements for service delivery and
accountability identified within the Performance Management Framework for Council. In
addition, a range of public service providers attend Council Committees on a regular basis to
present their plans/strategies and annual reports providing opportunity for Elected Member
engagement on behalf of communities and local businesses. Council actively responds to a
large number of other public sector consultations in relation to matters that effect services and
people in the Borough.

During the Council’s response to Covid 19 there has been significant engagement with local
communities and other partners to ensure local priorities and needs are addressed and to help
shape our approach to recovery.

¢ Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other
joint working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of
partnerships, and reflecting these in Council’s overall governance arrangements.
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The Council continuously strives to have the highest standards of governance arrangements
in place and endeavours to ensure that its partners also have high standards of governance
arrangements in place. The Council reviews its governance arrangements regularly to take
account of best practice guidance. A peer review of Council's governance arrangements
commenced in April 2021 and is ongoing.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by an annual review of governance, the work of the executive
managers within the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of
the governance environment, Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by
the external auditors.

The following reports provide information in sﬁpport of the Governance framework:

Strategic Director and Head of Department 6 monthly assurance statements
Internal Audit Reports

Health and Safety Reports

Finance and Budget Reports

Risk Management Reports

Performance Reporting

External Reviews including NIAO

ISO and other external accreditations

The following process has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance framework:

1. The Authority

The Council's Standing Orders and Financial Regulations provide the framework for its
decision making processes and sets out the detailed procedures and codes of conduct by
which Members and Officers operate to achieve Council objectives. Council meets once a
month on a formal basis to set the strategic direction and monitor the service delivery of the
Council. The Council has five committees that meet monthly and a Performance and Audit
Committee which meets quarterly.

The Group Party Leaders Forum seeks to provide an informal sounding board on major
strategic issues in advance of submission to Committee/Council, thereby facilitating and
streamlining the conduct of Council business.

2. The Executive

The Executive Management team which includes the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and
the Head of Finance, ICT & procurement meet at least monthly and monitor the strategic
direction and good governance across the Council. Strategic Directors and Heads of
Department completed six monthly Assurance Statements during 2020/21 and in signing,
opinions were informed by the following:

Assurance from relevant Heads of Department

Corporate, Departmental and relevant Project Risk Registers
Operational policies and procedures

Internal Audit reports
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s Administrative procedures (including segregation of duties)
¢ Management Supervision
¢ Scheme of delegation and accountability.

3. Performance & Audit Committee

The Council has a Performance & Audit Committee which reports to full Council. The
Committee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's risk
management framework and associated control environment. It also provides an independent
scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it exposes
it to risk and weakens the control environment. The terms of reference (Audit Committee
Charter) which sets out the purpose and roles and responsibilities was updated in December
2019,

The Performance and Audit Committee met quarterly during 2020/21 and consists of seven
members and two Independent Members. The Performance & Audit Committee Annual Report
2020/21 was presented at the June 2021 meeting. The annual report included the annual
Performance & Audit Committee Self-Assessment. As part of the Self-Assessment, the
Performance and Audit Committee proposed a number of minor actions to enhance its overall
performance and these actions will be implemented during 2021/22.

4. Internal Audit

Internal Audit provide an independent assurance and advisory service to assist Council in
achieving its objectives and improving the effectiveness of internal control, risk management
and governance processes. In 2020/21 the Internal Audit Plan was revised to take account of
the impact of the Covid pandemic focusing on emerging issues and risks. internal Audit
completed 64% of the Internal Audit Plan in 2020/21. A number of audits were delayed due to
the coronavirus pandemic and have been carried forward into the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan.
Although the number of audits completed in the 2020/21 year has reduced due to the reduction
in audit resources and the closure of facilities as a result of the pandemic, it is not considered
that this has a material impact on the ability to provide an overall opinion.

Overall, Internal Audit provided a ‘satisfactory’ annual assurance opinion in relation to the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Councii's framework of governance, risk management and
control based on the audit work finalised during 2020/21. This opinion is based on the following:

» For the 2020/21 year, 11 audits were completed with 8 (73%) of the audits obtaining a
satisfactory assurance and 3 audits receiving a limited assurance rating (27%).

» Management responses to Internal Audit work, with particular attention to the
acceptance of all recommendation and progress to address significant issues.

+ Risk Management further embedded across Council in 2020/21 and the ongoing
management of key corporate risks.

e Overview of managements response to the Covid pandemic and governance
processes put in place. Internal Audit consider that there has been no significant
variations to internal controls, risk and governance as a result of the pandemic.

» The evidence set out in the review of the Council's Code of Governance and Assurance
Statements regarding the range of assurances and governance processes in place.

However, some weaknesses and areas for improvement have been identified through internal
audit work. Three audits in the 2020/21 year received a limited assurance rating (Absence
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Management, Contract Management and Overtime). The keys issues identified from audit and
governance work are as follows:

» |Issues were identified in relation to Absence Management. In particular a risk was
identified in relation to the accuracy of data being recorded by managers. There was
also a variety of time recording systems throughout Council, none of which interacted
with the Absence Management System (PAMS). A sample of absences showed that
not ail Return to Work (RTW) interviews had been properly completed / processed as
per the PAMS system. The audit also highlighted that absence triggers were not always
identified and acted upon.

» There was no formal policy or procedures in place in relation to Contract Management.
A draft Contract Management Policy was prepared for Council in April 2018 and
amended in 2019 and whilst this policy has not yet been formally approved, it is
intended that it will be progressed during 2021/22 and communicated to staff. Further
improvements are also required in the recording and updating of existing contracts
across Council via a contract register and progress on this has also been made through
the appointment of external assessors.

* The overtime audit identified high levels of overtime in some areas of Council which is
being reviewed as part of the overall Council efficiency programme. Council currently
has no Overtime Policy, which has contributed to inconsistencies in keeping overtime
logs and allocating overtime across Council facilities.

In all cases recommendations have been agreed with senior management, improvement plans
have been drawn up and priority actions are required to be implemented within defined
timescales. Internal Audit will undertake follow up reviews on all limited audits to verify the
implementation of recommendations. The progress on the implementation of Internal and
External audit recommendations will be reported twice yearly to the Performance and Audit
Committee. In addition, an update on overdue priority one recommendations will brought to
each Performance and Audit Committee. Audit recommendations made in previous years
continued to be followed-up in 2020/21. There are four overdue priority 1 recommendations
at the end of 2020/21 that are currently being progressed by management. The impact of the
pandemic has contributed to the delay of these recommendations and are expected to be
addressed in the 2021/22 year.

Internal Audit also provided advice and guidance across Council as required during 2020/21
in relation to audit, risk and governance issues including new processes in terms of Covid
related grants for example.

An external review of the Internal Audit function was carried out in May/June 2019 which
concluded that the Internal Audit Function generally conforms to Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS). An Action Plan with agreed recommendations were reported to and
approved by the Performance and Audit Committee in September 2019. Significant progress
has been made with 15 of the 17 recommendations implemented with the remaining 2
recommendations to be implemented in 2021/22. In addition, an Internal Audit self-assessment
against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards was completed in May 2021 with the
conclusion being that Internal Audit was substantially compliant and therefore operating
effectively.
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5. Other explicit reviews/assurance mechanisms

Throughout the year the Council undertook / was subject to a number of external
reviews/accreditations. The following provides details of some of the more significant reviews,
accreditations and awards obtained throughout the year, to provide additional assurance in
respect of the Council’s Governance arrangements:

* Risk Management further embedded across Council in 2020/21 and is a continuously
evolving process. A risk register is developed for all significant Council projects. The
Corporate Risk Register is presented quarterly to both EMT and the Performance and
Audit Committee.

» Internal Health and Safety inspections by Corporate H&S Officers with regular reports
to the EMT.

» External funding received throughout the year is subject to independent audits from the
relevant funders including Government Departments and SEUPB.

» The Northern ireland Audit Office provides a level of assurance through the provision
of their annual audit and issuing of a management letter which includes an action plan
to address issues identified and proposals of improvement in relation to Councils
performance duties,

e Council participated in the 2020/21 NF| data matching exercise. The number of
matches was relatively low and no fraudulent activity was identified from the
investigation of the high risk matches.

» No data breaches reported to ICO during 2020/21.

» The Council retained the ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System
accreditation.

» The Environmental Health Department retained the 1SO 9001 accreditation.

e 2020 Environmental Benchmarking Survey silver award.

* 10 Green Flags for parks and open spaces.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has introduced a new
Financial Management Code (FM Code). Adoption of the FM Code commenced from 1 April
2021 with 2020/21 effectively being a shadow year. The FM Code requires authorities to
demonstrate that the processes they have in place satisfy the principles of good financial
management, which is an essential part of ensuring that public sector finances are sustainable.

The Council has reviewed its compliance against the FM Code through a self-assessment
exercise and it was deemed that the Council is generally compliant with the standards.
However, a number of areas of improvement have been identified to further strengthen
compliance and will be implemented during the 2021/22 year.

Significant Governance Issues

Two judicial reviews in relation to the Council’s Play Park Strategy and a Planning application
was declared in the 2019-20 Annual Governance Statement. Both Judicial Reviews were
withdrawn by the applicant’s in the 2020-21 year.

The following four issues were declared last year with all four of these continuing to be declared
as issues in this year's statement as follows:
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1. INTERREG lIA PROGRAMME IRELAND/NORTHERN IRELAND 2000-2006 PROJECT
REF.026413 WOOD DERIVED BIOMASS HEATING

In May 2011 the Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment (DETI) (now the Department
for the Economy) wrote to the legacy Craigavon Borough Council requesting a claw back of
£198,747 in relation to the European Funded Biomass Boiler Scheme. In November 2011 DETI
served a Writ of Summons against Craigavon Borough Council. Both insurance and legal
advice has been sought over the last 10 years and there has been ongoing correspondence
between Council and the Department for the Economy to discuss a resolution, with Council
keen to minimise exposure of legal costs. During the 20/21 financial year Counsel for both
parties exchanged position papers. The matter has not yet been concluded and is still under
consideration at this time.

2. CYBER SECURITY

Like almost all businesses and public sector bodies, a substantial risk that the Council faces
is cyber fraud. Technological advancements have over the last 10 years provided fraudsters
with a powerful series of tools with which to exploit the vulnerabilities of individuals, businesses
and councils alike. Cyber fraud and cyber-attacks represent the biggest and fastest growing
threat to the Council. External attacks can result in files being encrypted and becoming
inaccessible. Whilst the network could be restored the resulting loss of data and down time
represents a key risk to Council. Council is continuing to address recommendations in relation
to an IT Internal Audit report and in 2020/21 an IT Disaster Recovery Plan was approved and
put in place. In 2021/22 the Council will continue to implement internal audit recommendations
in respect of network security and are developing a Cyber Security Strategy which in turn will
improve the resilience of ICT systems.

3. COVID 19 RECOVERY

The impact of the Coronavirus pandemic has caused unprecedented disruption to service
delivery and income generation in 2020/21 causing a significant impact on budgets for 2021/22
and uncertainty for future years. A core principle of the Council’s approach to the Covid 19
pandemic has been to follow regional guidance and advice to inform its response, and to act
quickly in the best interests of employees, residents and businesses. Council reacted rapidly
as the impact of the pandemic increased. This included the council developing a process for
redeploying employees from across the organisation into critical frontline services in order to
maintain service delivery and improve employees resilience. The Council is currently
implementing recovery plans whilst still managing the uncertainty going forward. There will be
an impact on Council's corporate objectives and strategic priorities including financial, service
delivery, and health and wellbeing. The Council will continue to refine business continuity
processes and build resilience to protect essential service delivery. In total Council received
around £14 million of covid funding in the 2020/21 year to cover loss of income from Council
services and other additional cost pressures.

4. LEGAL CASES

There are two ongoing judicial reviews. One is in respect of pianning permission granted to the
Southern Regional College. A hearing took place in February 2020 and the Council currently
awaits the decision.
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In addition, the Council submitted an application for judicial review in respect of the decision
by the former Department for the Environment to grant planning permission for the wind turbine
development at Knock Iveagh. The Leave Hearing is yet to be scheduled by the High Court.
This is a complex matter that may result in a liability to Council.

The Council is also subject to a writ in respect of a tender process for the award of a residual
waste contract. Two parties submitted bids for the contract and the unsuccessful party is
challenging the tender process. The Court hearing has been set for 21 March to 1 April 2022.

Signed @4\1’%’: Date 24 September 2021

Chief Financial Officer

__;::__:_.-_1 = S, %

Signed Date 24 September 2021

Chair
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Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2021

Introduction

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require
larger local government bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of the statement of
accounts.

Allowance and Remuneration Arrangements

Councillors

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of
the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government
(Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019.

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2020 were
issued by the Department for Communities on 8 March 2021 (Circular LG 07/2021). Details
of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on the council’'s website at
www.ArmaghBanbridgeCraigavon.gov.uk.

Following local elections on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils
for a four year term. Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council had 41
councillors in 2020/2021.

Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the
Council in line with that determined by the National Joint Council (NJC) for Locall
Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Executive
Management Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government
Staff Commissions’ Code of Procedures on Recruitment and Selection,-which requires
appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments that are
open-ended.
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Allowances paid to Councillors

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Northern freland) 2011 and the Local Government (Payments to
Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to Councillors (audited information)

| 2020/21 2019/20
. Allowance Total Number of Total Number of
Allowances Councillors Allowances | Councillors
receiving receiving
£ Allowance £ Allowance
Basic Allowance 634,304 43 617,913 55
Special Responsibility 113,790 30 101,410 32
Allowance
Mayor's Allowance 19,103 2 19,103
Deputy Mayor's Aliowance 8,490 2 8,490
Mileage Allowance 3,823 9 30,460 37
Public Transport and Other 0 0 76 5
Travel
Subsistence 1,046 7 955
Courses/ 3,817 0
Conferences visits
registration & joining fees)
Dependants’ Carers 242 1 2,520 3
Allowance
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 784,615 780,927

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2020/2021 are published on the
council website at www.ArmaghBanbridgeCraigavon.gov.uk/council/councillor-information.

Independent Representatives

The Council has a contract of service with two independent representatives on the
Performance and Audit Committee. The amount payable per representative per meeting is
£250 on attendance. There were four meetings held during 2020/21.
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Remuneration of Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team. The
position of interim Director of People is currently filled through a contract for services with a
recruitment business organisation. The total value of the contract for 2020-21 was two
hundred and sixty-seven thousand pounds; {2019-2020, two hundred and twenty-nine
thousand pounds), inclusive of all associated costs including contract fees, expenses and
services. The rest of the Executive Management Team were in post for the full year and the
following table provides details of the remuneration paid to those officers.

Table 2: Remuneration (including salary) (audited information)

| Officers 2020/2021 2019/2020
- Salary Bonus | Benefits Total Salary Bonus | Benefits | Total
(Full year | Payments | in kind (Full year | Payments | in kind
equivalent {to equivalent (to

' in brackets nearest in brackets nearest

' where £100) where £100)

| applicable) applicable)

| £'000 £'000 £ £°000 £'000 £'000 £ £'000
Chief 125-130 0 0 125 -130 120-125 0 0 120-
Executive 125
R Wilson
Director of 90-95 0 0 90-95 90 - 95 0 0 90 - 95
Place
O Murtagh
Director of 90 -95 0 0 90-95 90-95 0 0 90 -95
Position
S O’'Gorman |
Director of 90 -95 0 0 90 -95 90 -95 0 : 0 90 - 95
Performance
S McNicholl

Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest
paid member of the Executive Management Team and the median remuneration of the

Council’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team
in the financial year 2020/21 was £125k - £130k. This was 5.4 times the median
remuneration of the workforce, which was £23.5k. (2019/20 5.3 times)

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the

Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median remuneration

of the Councils workforce (audited information)

In 2020/2021, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of

the Executive Management Team.
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2020/21 2019/20
£'000 £°000
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of £125 - £130 £120 - £125
the Executive Management Team
Median Total Remuneration £23.5 £23.2
Ratio 5.4 5.3




Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime and any gratia payments.

Bonus Payments

Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the
appraisal process. Bonuses relate to the performance in the year in which they become
payable to the individual.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and
treated by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument.

Exit Packages for staff

The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, together with total cost per
band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2020/2021 (audited information)

2020/2021 | 2019/2020

Severance Number of Number of Total Total Cost of Number of Number of Total Total Cost of
Package Compulsory other Number of Packages in Compulsory other Number of Packages in
Cost Band Redundancies departures Exit . each Cost Redundancies | departures Exit each Cost

agreed Packages in Band agreed Packages in Band

each Cost | each Cost
Band £'000 Band £°000
£0- 0 3 3 34 0 7 7 71
£20,000 _ _
£20,001- 0 7 7 230 0 13 13 417
£40,000 _
£40,001 0 9 9 444 0 7 7 | 364
£60,000
£60,001 0 4 4 282 0 1 1 73
£80,000 | )
£80,001- 0 2 2 184 0 3 3 279
£100,000 ]
£100,001 0 2 2 251 0 2 2 219
£150,000 ) _
£150,001 0 5 5 816 0 0 0 0
£200,000
£200,001 0 2 2 477 0 0 0 . 0
£250,000
0 34 34 2,718 0 33 33 1,423
Total

Costs of exit packages in 2020/2021 relate to staff for whom decisions to grant voluntary
redundancies were approved by Council prior to 31 March 2021,
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Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme {Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) which is a funded
defined benefit pension scheme, which provides retirement benefits for council employees on
a “career average revalued earnings” basis from 1 April 2015. Prior to that date benefits were
built up on a “final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/48th pensionable
pay for each year. Pension benefits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31
March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership.
There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009.
Pension benefits in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate
of 1/80th {pension) and 3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of
membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give up some pension for
additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) limits. The conversion
rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is
modified to reflect the fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have
always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was
accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/48th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers.
Prior to 1 April 2009, a member’s contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable
remuneration {(except for those who were entitled to contribute to the Scheme at 5% before 1
February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution
rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April
2008. From 1 April 2015, the member contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of

pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for
Communities in April each year in accordance with the increase applied to a pension in
payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2020, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
1 £0 - £15,000 5.5%

2 £15,001 - £22,900 5.8%

3 £22,901 - £38,300 6.5%

4 £38,301- £46,400 6.8%

5 £46,401 - £91,900 8.5%

6 More than £91,900 10.5%

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund’s actuary every three years at the
triennial valuation. A formal triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 was
carried out in 2019/2020 and set the employer contribution rates for the 3 years commencing
1 April 2020 as follows:
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Table 6: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer Contribution Rate
1 Aprit 2020 — 31 March 2021 19.5%
1 April 2021 — 31 March 2022 19.5%
1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023 19.5%

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on
27 June 2014 and The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional
Provisions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014. Both sets of
regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is
modified to reflect the fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have
always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was
accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/49th. The in-year pension
contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2020/21 was £147k (2019/20
£145k).

The value of pension benefits for the Executive Management Team of the Council accrued
during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of Senior Staff in 2020/2021 (audited information)

Executive Accrued Real increase | CETVat | CETV at Real
Pension at (decrease) in | 31/3/2021 | 31/3/2020 | increase in
Ll DU R pension age as | pension and CETV
Officers at 31/3/2021 related lump
and related sum at £'000 £'000 £'000
lump sum pension age
£'000
£°000
50 -55 2.5-5.0 824 756 52
Chief Executive
] 70 -75 (0-2.5)
R Wiison
(Lump Sum) {(Lump Sum)
40 - 45 25-50 735 676 45
Director of Place 60 — 65 0-25
O Murtagh
(Lump Sum) (Lump Sum)
35 - 40 25-5.0 521 477 33
Director of Position
45 - 50 0-256
$ O’Gorman
(Lump Sum) {Lump Sum)
Director of 35-40 0-25 628 599 14
Performance 60 - 65 0-25
S McNicholl (Lump Sum) (Lump Sum)

The Current Interim Director of People is not a member of the NI Local Government Pension
Scheme and Council did not contribute to any other pension schemes on their behalf.
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by
a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued
benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. It is a payment
made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension
scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the
pension benefits they have accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown
relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total
membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension
Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any actual
or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due
when pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. it does not include the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation. Contributions paid by the employee (including
the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and
uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. However, the real
increase calculation uses common actuarial factors at the start and end of the period so that
it disregards the effect of any changes in factors and focuses only on the increase that is
funded by the employer.

D

Chief Executive
24 September 2021
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer
| certify that:

a. The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 on pages 43 to 107
has been prepared in the form directed by the Department for Communities and
under the accounting policies set out on pages 47 to 67.

b. 1n my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and
expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the
end of the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Dl

Chief Financial Officer

Date 24 September 2021

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Performance & Audit Committee on 16th
September 2021.

L oo

Chair

Date 24 September 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARMAGH CITY, BANBRIDGE AND
CRAIGAVON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council for
the year ended 31 March 2021 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The
financial statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in
Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes including significant
accounting policies. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set
out within them. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting on the United Kingdom
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

| have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as
having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21,
of the financial position of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council as at
31 March 2021 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities’
directions issued thereunder.

Basis for apinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) {(UK). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of Armagh
City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Financial Reporting Council’s Revised Ethical Standard 2019, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, | have concluded that Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon
Borough Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on Armagh City, Banbridge
and Craigavon Borough Council’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The going concern basis of accounting for Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council is
adopted in consideration of the requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting, which require entities to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
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of the financial statements where it anticipated that the services which they provide will continue into
the future.

My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts other than
the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in that report as having
been audited, and my audit certificate and report. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the
other information included in the Statement of Accounts. My opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my
report, | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If | identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, | am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work | have performed, |
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 1 am required to report
that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Department for Communities’ directions made under the Local
Government [Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

® the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31
March 2021 is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which | report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified material
misstatements in the Statement of Accounts.

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:
e in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

* does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21;

=  does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities; and
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* is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

e [issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005; or

* | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

e | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005,

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities,
the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

e the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view;

» such internal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free form material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; and

e assessing the Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Chief Financial Officer
anticipates that the services provided by Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council will not continue to be provided in the future.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue a certificate that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the bhasis of these financial statements.

| design pracedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of non-compliance with laws and regulation, including fraud.

40



My procedures included:

¢ obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to Armagh
City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council through discussion with management
and application of extensive public sector accountability knowledge. The key laws and
regulations | considered included governing legislation and any other relevant faws and
regulations identified;

e making enquires of management and those charged with governance on Armagh City,
Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council’s compliance with laws and regulations;

¢ making enquiries of internal audit, management and those charged with governance as
to susceptibility to irregularity and fraud, their assessment of the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and irregularity, and their knowledge of actual, suspected
and alleged fraud and irregularity;

o completing risk assessment procedures to assess the susceptibility of Armagh City,
Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur. This included, but was not limited to,
an engagement director led engagement team discussion on fraud to identify particular
areas, transaction streams and business practices that may be susceptible to material
misstatement due to fraud;

» engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with the applicable legal and regulatory framework throughout the audit;

¢ documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of internal controls in
place to mitigate risk of material misstatement due to fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations;

e designing audit procedures to address specific laws and regulations which the
engagement team considered to have a direct material effect on the financial
statements in terms of misstatement and irregularity, including fraud. These audit
procedures included, but were not limited to, reading board and committee minutes,
and agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation
and approvals as appropriate; and

¢ addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls by:

o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected
relationships or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and inappropriate or
unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions made in determining
accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias; and

o investigating significant or unusual transactions made outside of the normal
course of business.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of my certificate.
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This report is made solely to the Members of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as
specified in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government
Bodies.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005
and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
1 Bradford Court

Galwally

BELFAST

BTS 6RB

28 September 2021
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Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staternent shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements: this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown
in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

£

Place Directcrate 2 13.334,770 (2.763.819) 10,570,951 13.613.694 (2.859.701) 10,753,993

Pgople Directarate 2 69,583,945 (9.853.643) 59,730,302 64,300,070 16,389,580) 47,910,401
Position Directorate 2 12.672.759 (2.888.269) 9,784,490 12,643,921 {3.574.304) 2,069,617
Performance Directorate 2 8872775 (286,229) 8,586,546 9.945.542 (299.554) 9.648.989
Other Services 2 4083.115 {1.151.494) 2.901.621 3184.1M (247.926) 2,936,185

R B SRS e 108,517,364 (16,943,45d) 91,573,910 103,690,338 (23,371,065) 80,319,275

Conlinuing Operations

Other Operating 3
Expenditure/ Income -] (102,438) (102,438) 148,955 148,955
Finoncing and Investment

Income and Expendiiture ¢ 4,392,506 (38221 4010,294 3.007.54 (457,268) 3.540,279
Net Operaling Expenditure 112,909,870 (17,428,104) 95,481,766 107,856,840 (23,828,333) 84,028,509
Taxation and Non-Specific :

Grant Income 1Q : (94.312.528)  (94.312.528) (74.354,747) (74.354.747)

(Surplus)/Deficit on the

112,909,870 (111,740,632) 1,149,238 107,856,840 (98,183,080)

Provision of $ervices

(Surplus)/Deficit on
revaluation of non-current A (1.611.795) 6.710,129)
assefs

Remeasuraments of the Net
Defined Benefit Liability 21 23.582.000 4,212,000
(Assel)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 21,970,205 (2,498,129}

Tota! Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 23,139,443 7,175,633
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Ammagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Movermnent in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the
authority, analysed into 'usable reserves' (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other
‘unusable reserves'(ie those that the Councitis not able to use to provide services). The Statement shows how the movements in year of
the Council's reserves are broken down bstween gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and the statutory adjustrment required to retumn to the amounts chargeabls to council tax for the year. The Net
Increqse/Decreose line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements in the year following those adjustments.

Balonce as af 1 Apiil 2019 83 8,285, 32 % 28,083,289

Movement in reserves during
the year

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the
pro‘\)flsi;n(?)r san.?lcas (9.673.762) - - 9.673.762) g (9.673.762)
Other Comprehensive

income and Expanditure - - - o 2,498,129 2,498,129

Tetal Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure (9,673,762) - (9,673,762) 2,498,129 (7,175,633)
Adjustments between
accounting basts & funding 8,252,674 - - 8,252,674 (8.252,674) .
under raguiations

Net increase before transfors
to Statutory and Other {1,421,088) - - (1,421,088} {5,754,545) (7,175,633
Resarves

Transfers to / from Statutory

and Ofher Reserves (542,606} 542,606 B i i )

increase/ Decrease in yaar {1.963,694) 542,606 - (1,421,088) (5,754,545) (7,175,633)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 26,662,201 66,683,193 3,345,394

Movement in reserves during
the year

17,834,270 8,827,931

Surplus/ (Deficity on the

provision of services {1.165.238) . - (1.169.238) = (1.169.238)

Other Comprehansive

Income and Expenditure . e - - (21,970,205) (21.970.205)

Total Comprahensive Income

and Expenditure (1.169,238) = C (1,169,238) (21,970,205) (23,139,443)

Adjustments between
accounting basls & funding 12910.775 1,812,332 - 14,723,107 (14,723,107)
under regulations

Net Increase/ (decrease)
before fransfers to Statutory 11,741,537 1,812,332 - 13,553,869 (36,693,312 (23,139,443)
and Other Reserves

Transfers to / from Statutory

and Other Reserves (9.695.408) LG ) 3

Increase In yoar 2,046,129 11,507,740 - 13,553,869 (36,693.312) (23,139,443)

19,880,359 20,335,671 40,216,070 29,989,881 70,205,951

Balance as ot 31 March 2021




Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Batance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

The Balance Sheet shows the value as ot the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets
of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first
category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second category of reserves is those that the
Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve). where amounts would only become ovailable 1o provide sarvices if the assets are sold; and
reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ' Adjustments between acceunting basis and
funding basis under regulations’.

313t March 202]_ 315t March 2G20

Fixed Assets n 241.049.537 243,996,020
Long Term Debtors 15 1.164.322 1,294,182
LONG TERM ASSETS 242,213,85% 245,290,202
Inventories 14 394,858 463,522
Shoit Term Debtors 15 13.455,018 11,474,370
Cash ond Cash Equivalents 25 11,981,553 1.517,693
Assets Held for Sale 11 390.000 -
CURRENT ASSETS

Short Termn Borrowing 17 15,503,575 17,007,021
Skort Terrn Creditors 18 10.678.796 12.887.456
Provislons 19 500,183 A45.075
CURRENT LIABILITIES 26,582,554

Leng Term Creditors 18 20.889 20.289
Provisions 19 4,397,348 3.610,430
Long Term Bomowing 17 60.985.546 56,989,122
Other Long Term Liabllities il 106,234,000 75,212,000
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 171,646,783 135,040,841
MNET ASSETS 70,205,951 93,345,394

USABLE RESERVES

Copltal Receipts Reserve 26 -

Capital Grants Unapplied Account 26 1.812.332 -
Capital Fund 26 3,848,079 3.848.079
Renewal and Repalrs Fund 26 - 515,517
Other Balances and Reserves 26 14,675,260 4,464,335
General Fund 26 19,880,399 17,834,270

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account 27 49.557.754 53.654,837
Revaluation Reserve 27 88,241.629 89,743,545
Pansions Reserve 27 (106,234,000 (75,212.000)
Accumuloted Absences Account 27 (966,754) (1.011,245)
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 27 (608,748) - {491.944)

NET WORTH 70,205,951 93,345,394
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Armagh Cily Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Cash Flow Statement at 3! March 2021

The Cash Flow Staternent shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting pericd. The statement
shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by cf assifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arlsing from operating activities is a key Indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or frorm the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows hove been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Coungil's future

service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful In predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capitat
(ie borrowing) to the Council.

2020/21

Net Deficit on the provision of services (1.169,238) (9.673,762)

Adjustment for non-cosh movernents 25 17,732,752 8.861.214

Adijust for ttems included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of

services that are Investing and financing activities & (6.687.619) €L348,170)
Net cosh flows from operating activities 2,873,895 {2,160,718)
Cash flows from Investing Activitios 5 (2.903.017) (29.431,642)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 25 3,492,982 32,320,105
Net increase or decrease in ¢cash and cash equivalents 10,463,860 727,745
Cash and cash equivalents at the baglnning of the reporting period 1L.517.693 FL A
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 11,981,553 1,517,693



Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

1. Accounting Policies

a)} General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2020/21 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2021. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2020/21, supported by international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
i.  Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods,
is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories
on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
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instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where itis
doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to
revenue for the income that might not be collected.

ii. Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Council has neither acquired nor discontinued operations (or transferred operations under
machinery of government arrangements) during the financial year.

ili. Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

Council has made a provision for the costs of outstanding job evaluations arising from the
Council's Single Status review.

iv. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management.

v. Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised in the
Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

vi. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to
the accounts.
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vii. Employee Benefits

Short-term empioyee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and are recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for
the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer’'s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the
earlier of:

a) when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer, or
b) when the related restructuring costs are incurred.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from
the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post-Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'
Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Superannuation
Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates, etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees.
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Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.1% (based
on the Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve, using the constituents of the iBoxx index of AA rated
corporate bonds and the duration of the Employer's liabilities).

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund attributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unguoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities -~ current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
- Within the Cost of Services

(a) Current Service Cost — the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period

{b) Past Service Cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statements.

- Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

{c) Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) — the change in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time.

- Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

(d) The Return on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from the
plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any
costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax included in
the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

(e) Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure."

- Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

(f) Contributions by Scheme Participants — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due to
payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution increases pension due
to the employee in the future).
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(g) Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments into the
scheme by the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement
benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award o any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'
pension fund."

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

viii. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to refiect such events, but where a category of events would have a
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated
financial effect.

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues the certificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.
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Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

ix. Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council’s financial performance.

X.  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a resuit of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Xi. Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a patrty to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and
are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for
the year according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread
over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was
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remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it
was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES in the year of
repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring
of the loan porifolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the
premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or
modified loan and the write-down to the CIES is spread over the life of the loan by an
adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

- amortised cost
- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annuai
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of
the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial
assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the year in the loan
agreement.

The Council has made a loan to a voluntary organization at less than market rates (soft loan).
When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service)
for the present value of the interest what will be forgone over the life of the instrument, resulting
in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that
the impact of soft loans on the District Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial
year — the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required
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against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Accounts in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost [or where relevant FVOCI], either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss
model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not
take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial
part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially
recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significiantly
or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in
the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following technigues:
- instruments with quoted market prices - the market price

- other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three levels:

* Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the
authority can access at the measurement date.

* Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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xii.  Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction
was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are
reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement if material.

Xiii. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions
are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and
all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

xiv. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by
the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed {with adequate resources being available)
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and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by
being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably
as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the development phase
(research expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Council's goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value
of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market and
therefore in practice are carried at revalued cost. An asset is tested for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the
relevant service fine(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £5,000) the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

xv. Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations satisfied
based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the financial year.

xvi.  Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery
of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result in
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a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are
not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The
gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

xvii. Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there are no
tradable allowances. It is not a ‘cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are not
tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance
Sheet.

xviii. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at
the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease's inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a
liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the
carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down
the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property,plant or equipment — applied to write
down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
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term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by
a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between
the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-ling basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the
commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
(i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a
lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property ~ applied to write down the lease
debtor together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the element
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for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this
point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts
are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

xix. Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to
fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up
to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are decommisioned i.e. to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets
held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

59



Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

xx. Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment over
£5k is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred. Assets are grouped under Land, Buildings,
Infrastructure, Vehicle Plant & Equipment, Community, Surplus and shown within Note 11a and
b. Further groupings are Intangible and Investment properties that are shown in note 11d and e
respectively.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management

¢. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of
the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
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" Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost

- surplus assets - the current value measurement base Is fair value, estimated at highest and
best use from a market participant's perspective

- all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use (existing use value — EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued on a 5 year rolling basis with the
aim of having 20% of assets being subject to a physical valuation each year and the remaining
80% having a desktop revaluation carried out (Subject to any agreement to change the % each
year to ensure that, by the end of the five year cycle, 100% of assets will have been physically
inspected). Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to
recognise unrealised gains. However, gains are credited to the CIES where they arise from the
reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance {(up to the amount of the
accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterent, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.
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The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general fall in
asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit specific to an
asset as is in the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following basis:

- buildings & infrastructure are depreciated on a straight line basis up to 50 years; based on
their carrying value over the estimated remaining useful life of the asset as advised by a suitably
qualified person.

- plant and equipment, vehicles and ICT are depreciated on a straight line basis on their historic
cost using a percentage of the value of each class of asset in the Balance Sheet.

The estimated useful life of high value vehicles is reviewed each year and, where material,
adjustments are made to extend the useful life.

- infrastructure - straight line allocation up to 25 years.

- a full year's depreciation is charged in the year of acquisition and none in the year of disposal.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

xxi. Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture.
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Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be
held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of
heritage.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment for
heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where
doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance
with the Council's general policy on impairment.

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and
losses) in accordance with the Council's accounting policies on fixed assets. The Council's
collections of heritage assets are as follows:

- modern art sculptures in towns and parks.

- mayoral regalia.

- works of art and antique furnishings held by council.
- range of art and antiquities held in council museums.

A range of categories of Heritage assets held at various council locations includinb FE
McWilliam Gallery and Studio, the Civic Buildings and some Town Halls were last valued as at
31 March 2019.

xxii. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making
of a settiement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower
settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant
service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles
the obligation.
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xxiii. Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance.
When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into
the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the
expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement benefits, accumulated absences and provisions discount rate and do not
represent usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant note
to the accounts.

xxiv. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading accounts
are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

c¢. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to either
an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with
statutory guidance). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are
therefore replaced by minimum revenue provision (MRP) in the General Fund Balance, by way
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

xxv. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources
or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so that
there is no impact on the level of District Rates.
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xxvi. Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is shown
net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.

xxvii. The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

Due to its low levels of energy consumption, there is no requirement for the Council to
participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme.

xxviii. Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings (other financial
instruments as applicable) at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use
or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council's financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, as follows:

* Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the authority can access at the measurement date
* Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
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* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

b) Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires
an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change that
will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code also
requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively unless transitional
arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures spanning two financial
years.

For 2020721, the accounting policy changes that need to be reported are:

- Definition of a Business: Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.

c) Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from Note 1a the Council has not had to make any critical
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

d) Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

i.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the
assets falls.

Valuation exercises are carried out by an independent valuer from Land and Property Services
(LPS). These are carried out with based on information as at 31 March each year and subject
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to assumptions at that time. There have been additional estimations used due to Covid-19
restrictions as referred in note 11c.

ii. Heritage assets

Valuation exercise of categories of Heritage assets are carried out by an independent valuer.
These are carried out with based on information as at 31 March each year and subject to
assumptions at that time.

iii. Fair Value Measurement

The Council employs relevant experts to identify the most appropriate valuation techniques to
determine fair value.

iv. " Provisions

The Council has not made a provision for bad debt arising from non-collection of rate income by
Land & Property Services in future years as it is not certain how much uncollected rates will be
written off by LPS in future years. Also, Council has not made a provision for the settiement of
claims for back pay arising from Equal Pay settiements due to the uncertainty of the amounts
involved., -

Provisions are inherently uncertain, however the details included in note 19 have been are
carried out based on information as at 31 March each year and subject to assumptions at that
time, and/or independent valuations were applicable.

v. Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of
consuiting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied. '

vi. Arrears

A collective assessment of the outstanding debt balances was completed based on the
Council's credit control procedures and an allowance for impairment loss for trade receivables
has been included.
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Ammagh Cily Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2

Ml Expendilure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants,
rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorifies in comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by
authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for
decision making purposes between the council’s directorates.

2019720

Place Directorate 5,296,991 £,273.960 10,570,951 8,542,074 2211.919 10.753.993
Paople Directorate 41,741,981 17,988,321 59.730.302 36,288,593 11,621,898 47,910,491
Posttion Directorate 8,724,487 1,060,003 9.784,490 8.040.960 1,028,657 9.069.617
Performance Directorate 7,794,998 791,548 8,586,546 8,698,776 950,213 9,648,989
Other Services 2.812,230 B%.391 2.901.621 2,929,797 6,388 2,934,185
£ OS5I O v]e) (.68 0 9 210 64 500,200 8.0 a0 Q
Other Income and Expenditure (68,416,818) (21,987,856) (90,404,672) (62,536,506) (8,109,007) (70,645,513)
9 or D 044 Q & &9 0.0&8 @8 &
Op g Genera d D 04
Surplus/ (Deficil) on General
Fund Balance in Year 2,045,129 (1,943,694)

Closing General Fund 19,880,399

A review of the presentation of local authority financial staternents resulted in changes to the Code of Accounting Practice. Councils are
required to report on the basis of how they are structured and how they operate, monitor and manage financial perfarmaonce. The
purpose of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) is to bring together the funding framewaork and the accounting framework by
service. The EFA takes net expenditure chargeable to taxation, reconciling this to the CIES surplus or deficit on the Provisicn of Services
There is no impact on the balance sheet as a result of this change In accounting policy and as such a third balance sheet is not required.

The "Other Services" heading in 2020721 CIES relates to amounts pertaining to decisions made on Coucil Services that are not atiibuted to
the Directorate Services. such as expenditure on other reserve projects, transformation. provisions and Covid 19 costs.



Amagh City Banbridge & Cralgavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

b Nole to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to arrive at
the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant fransfers between reserves are
explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2020/21
e 0 eneaig dtoa Q 0 ange fo e a O Othe 0 olq
O re e G e d (1 ) ] oleliie e 2. O o a O ole
ate o Q pOse | c o e
b i T e [ LIS Jr—— [3 A
Place Directorate 1,616,962 538.993 3,118,005 - 5,273,950
Paople Directorate 11.815,212 3,774,471 2,398,638 - 17,988,321
Position Directorate 484.015 585,285 (9.297) - 1,060,003
Performance Directorate 9,367 799.049 (16.868) - 791.548
Other Services - 83,202 6,189 - 89.391
Net Cost of Services 13,925,554 5,781,000 5,496,667 - 25,203,223
Other Income and Expenditure from the (14,068,252) 1.659.000 116,804 (9.695.408) | (21.987.856)
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit (142.696) 7,440,000 541347 {%.695,408) 3215347
and Comprahensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis
2019/20
C = O erd aioo (] O a ge o o Q O o) e O O
O prepe e ) ana 0 d e aQpig e P O Ad e Qa O ad e
ateme Ao pose d e d
Place Directorate 1,602,469 611,139 (1.689) - 2211919
People Directorate 7,365,565 4,239,476 16,857 11,621,898
Pasition Directorate 351,668 650,399 26,590 - 1,028,657
Performance Directorate 34,873 899,579 15,761 - 950,213
Other Services - 5.406 982 6,388
Net Cost of Services 9,354,575 6,405,999 58,501 - 15,819,075
Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis (8,868,179 1,416,000 (114,222) (542.606) | (8.109.007)
Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Staterneant Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of |
Services 486,396 7.821,999 (85.721) (542.606) 7.710.068 |
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Adjusiments for Capital Purposes
Adjustments to General Fund Balances to meet the requirements of generally accepted acceounting practices, this colurmn adds in depraciotion and impalment

and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for:

i} Other operating expenditure - adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of Income on disposat of assefs and the amounts written off for those ossets.

Iiy Financing and Investrnent Income and expenditure - the statutory charges for caplial financing ie Minimum Revernue Provision and other revenus contributions
are deducted from financing and investrment income and expenditure as these are not chargeabls under generally accepted accounting practices.

iy Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure - Capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivabie In the yaar to those recelvable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfiod throughout
the year. The Taxatlon and Non Specific Grant income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable In the year without conditions or for which
condltions were satisfiad In the year.

Net changse for the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of 1AS 19 Employee Bensfits persion related expenditure and income:

For Services: this represents the removal of the employer pansion contributions made by the authorlty as allowed by statute and the replacemeant with current
service costs and past service costs,

For Financing ond investment income and expenditure: the net interest on the defined benefit liability Is charged to the CIES.

Other statutory differences

Other statulory adjustments between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to
be recognised under statute:

For Financing and Investment Income and expenditure the other statutory adjustments column recognises adjustments to General Fund for the timing differences
for premiums and discounts.

The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant Income and expenditure represents the difference between what is chargeabte under statutory regulations for
diistrict rates and NDR that was projected to be received ot the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in
the Code.

Other non-statutory adjustments

Other non-statutory adjusiments represent amounts debited/cradited to service segments which need to be adjusted against the 'Other income and expenditure
from the Expenditure and Funding Analysls' line to comply with the presentational requirements in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment:

For financing and Investment income and expenditure the other non-statutory adjustments column recognises adjustments to service segments, eg for Interest
Income and expenditure and changes In the falr values of investment properties.

For faxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure the other non-statuory adjustrments column recognised adjustments to service segments, eg for
unringfenced govemment grants.

Transfer to and from reserves



Amagh City Banbridge & Cralgavon Borough Council
Noles to the Finoncial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

E¥.] Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Expenditure K . - . I 2019/20

Employee Benefits Expenses 48,096,244 49,253,542
Other Services Expenditure 46,495,563 46,662,312
Depreciation. Amortisation. Impaimment 1 13.925,557 7.774.485
Interest Payrments 9 4,346,666 3,934,577
Loss on the Disposal of Assets 8b - 168,955
Investment Property Expenditure 9d 45.840 462,970
Total Expenditure 112,909,870 107,856,841

2019/20

(16.943,454)

Fees, Charges and other service Income

(23.371,064)
Interest and Investment Income 9 (104.615) (152,022
District rate income 10 - (69.258,065) (65,481.687)
Govemment grants and Contributions 10 (25.054,463) (8.873.060)
Gain on the Disposal of Assets Bb (102.438)
Invastment Property income od (277.597) (305,246)
Total Income (111,740,632) (98,183,079)
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,169,238 9,673,762

Exceptionol funding received in response to the COVID-19 pandemis during 2020721 is included in the above figures. Funding of £1.6m is
shown In the 'Fees. Charges and other senvice income'’ and relate directly to specific COVID-19 prajects included in the "Other Services
Expenditure’. The balance relating to non specfic COVID-19 funding of £12.4m is included in the ‘Gavemment grants and Contibutions
figure. The funding was received from DIC (£10.6m). Dfl (£0.6m). DEARA (£1.5M) and HMRC (£1.3m). (19/20 DIC £€0.25m and HMRC £0.09M).

[}] Revenue fiom contracts with service recipients

The council does not receve material revenue from Conftracts with Service recipients

k|



[ 'R Adjustments between an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

Amounts included in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be excluded when determining the

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the yeor:

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Investrnent Property Revaluation Movement to
CIES

Revaluation increases/decreases and impaiments
taken to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Servicas

Depreciation charged in the year on non-current
assets

Net Revenue expenditure funded frorm copital
under statute

Carrying amount of non curient assets sold

Proceeds from the sole of PP&E, investment
property and intangible assets

Net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with 1A5 19

Employers confributions payable o the NILGOSC
and retirement benefits payabla direct to
pensioners

Capital Grants and Donated Assak: Receivable
and Applied in year

Capital Grants Receivable and Unapplied in year

Adjustrmenits in relation to Short-term compensated
absences
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustment

Amounts not included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expendituie Statement but required
by statute to be included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the

Statutory Provision for the financing of Capital
Investment
Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure

Interest

From Capital

Other

Renewal and Repairs Fund
Interest

Other

Capita! Receipts Reserve
Inferest

Other

Other Funds and eamarked reserves
Other

Unusable reserves

Capital Adjustment Account

a

Ha

21

21

10b

10C
279
27h

23

&

27

260

5.217.326

8,708,231

50,827

(153,265)

13,925,557

5.541.156

(102.438)

14,194,000

(6.754,000)

(4.724.022)
(1.812.332)

(44,491)

116,804

(5.768,147)

(1.661,312)

12,910,775

excluded when determining the

10,606
91.345
7,683,140 7.785.09
1.580.088
180,563
{11.608) 168.955
16,193,000
(8,371.000)
(1,336,562
58,503
{114,222
(5.837.650)
(1,873.52%)

8,252,674

(9.695,408)

(9.695.408)

" (9.695.408)

(542.606)

(542,606)

(542.606)

T2




-3l Cost of Services on Continuing Cperations
-1 General power of competence

Prior to Local Goveinment Reform on ist April 2015, expenditure far special purposes was limited under Section 40 of the Local Govermnment
Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. This section was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act (Northem keland) 2014

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Northem Ireland) 2014, the Council has the power o do anything that individuals generally

may do. Councils have the power to do this with or without charge. The power of competence is not limited to benefitting the area or is
residents nor is it limited by existing powers.

There was no expenditure under the general power of competance (Nil in 2019/20).

[+] External Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following costs relafing to the annual oudit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and
other services provided by the Councils external guditors.

xtemol Audit Foes 75,000 1,500
Performance Audt Fees 5.250 6,600
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Audit Fees 1.244 -

.Ml Cperating and Finance Leases
Councit as Lessor

i s .

The Council has leased out property to Banbridge Enterprise Limited on a finance leose with a remaining term of 87 vears

The present value of lease payments receivable under the finance lease arangements is recognised as a receivable ond inciuded in both

short and long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable ond the present value of the amounts receivable is
recognised as uneamed finance income.

The minimum lease payments comprise seftlerment of the long-term debtor for the inferast in the property acquired by the lessee and

finance income that wil be eamed by the Council in future years while the debtor rernains outstanding. The gress Investment is made up
of the following amounts:

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

g

il

Current
Non-current

Gross Investment in the Lease Minimum Ledse Payments
 March 2021 31 " ¥ : ) 203 ot Marc

3

] ! £ £ £
Not later than one yeaor 952 945 952 945

Later than one year and not later thoan five years 3.878 3.850 3478 3.850
Later than five years 10.564 111,544

The unguaranteed residual values of the assets leased under finance leases at the end of the yaar are estimated at £nil (Previous year
£nily.

The accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable is Snil (comparative year €nil)
No contingent rents were recognised as recsivable by the Council.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The average interest rate contracted is
approximately 0.73% (comparative year 0.73%).



blOperating Leases (Co

The Council, In accordance with its stafutory and discretionary responsibiities, leases out property and equipment under operating leases
for the folowing purposes:

- for the provision of community services. such as sporis faciifies, tourism services and community centres

- for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for small local businesses

- any other purposes

Rental income recognised in the CIES in the current year amounts to 338,449 (2019/20 £426,369)

The lease contracts are all non-cancellable and do not include an extension option. The lease terms are between 1 and 18 years. Future
minimum lease income Is set out below:

Not loter than 1 year 274,422 f

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 200.528 957,593

Later than 5 years : 114,791 332,148
1,289.741 1,587,650

Council as Lessee

ance Leases {Council o

A number of Council's vehicles were heid under finonce leases. The assets are included under Vehicles. Plant & Equipment which form an
integral part of property, plant and equipment (see note 11h-leased assets).

The vehicles and equipment acquired under these leases were carried in the Balance Sheet ot the following nef amounts:

3158 Mar

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment = T i 6,762

The Council is committed to making minimurm payrnents under these leases comprising setlement of the long-term liability for the interest in
the property acquired by the Council and finance costs that will be payable by the authority in future years while the liability remains
outstanding. The minimum lease payments are mode up of the fokowing amounts:

31st March 2021 _3151 March 2020

Finarce leases liobllities (net present value of rminimum lease payments):
Current - 6,762
Non- Current N N

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:

Minimum Lecse Payments Finance Lease Liabilities

] it March 2020 31st March 2021 31

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not ater than five years

T4



The Council has acquired photocapiers and land under operating leases.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leqses in future years are:

31st March 2030

Not later than 1 year . 85,084 - 85917

Later than 1 yaar and no later than 5 years 73,164 146,917
Later than 5 years 288.000 294,000

The expenditure charged fo the sarvice charge line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the yeor in relation
to these leases was:

2020/2] 2019/20

139.623

Total 139,623 149,002

Employee Casts and Member Allowcnces
L] Staff Costs y _ 2020/21 20]_9_/20

36,853,381 | 37.283.833

Solaries and Wages
Employers NIC 3,145,194 3,140,189
Employers Superannuation 6,520,528 7.377.531

Total staff costs 46,519,103 47,801,553

In agdition. agency costs during the year amounted to £596.173 (2019/20 £490,777). Investment solary expenses of £25,218 is included in
both the salary note above and the expenses In note 11c.

The Council's current confribution rate to NILGOSC scheme is 19.5%.

At last actuarial valuation dated 31st March 2019 there was o surplus of £836.9m relative fo the liabilities. The funding level was 112%.

The Council received furlough monies of £1.36m (2019/20 €87k).

Average Number of Employees - whera FTE represents fulltime equivalent employeas

b
Place Directorate 92 95
People Directorate 813 849
Position Directorate 159 163
Performance Diractorate 105 1

Tobgl Numibern

020 019720

Full-timé nurnbers employed 944 988
Part-time numbers employed 391 390
Total Number 1,335 1,378
[ Senio ployees’ Re erGtio 020 019/20

€50.001 to £60,000 12 10
£60.001 to £70,000 13 17
[E70.007 to £80.000 ] 1 -

£80,001 1o £90.0000 - !
£90,001 to £100.000 3 2

100,001 to £110,000 - .
E110,001 to £120.000 5 1
£120,001 fo £130,000 1 s

Total Number 30 31



o Mambers' Allowonces

2

Basic allowance 634,304 617,913
Mayor's & Deputy Mayor's Allowance 27.593 27.593
Special Responsibility Allowonces 113.790 101,410
Depeandents' carers allowance 242 2.520
Employer costs 205.039 211776
(Mileage 3.823 30,460
Conferences and Courses 3,817 -
Travel & Subsistence Costs 1.046 1.031
Miscallaneous Costs -

Telal 989,454 992,703

[:] Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

As a result of Reform on 1st Apiil 2015, stoff transferred from Central Government to the Councit are members of the Northern Ireland Civil
Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension anrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the Department for
Communities Is unable to identify its share of the underiving assets and liabilities. The most up fo date actuarial voluation was carried out as
at 31 March 2014, This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated fo reflect cument condifions and rolled forward to
the reporting date of the DOF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2021.

The scheme’s Actuary reviews employer contributions every four years following a full scheme valuation: The 2016 scheme valuation was
completed by GAD in March 2(M9. The ocutcome of this valuation used fo set the level of contributions for employers from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2021,

For 2020/21, smployers’ contributions of £407.770 (2019-20 £407,609) were payable to the NICS pension arrangements at one of three rates
in the range 28.7% to 34.2% of pensionable poy, based on salary bands.

This change is primarily due to the reduction in the Superannuation Confributions Adjusted for Past Experiences (SCAPE) discount rate (as
announced af Budget 2018) to 2.4% per annum above CPI. The confribution rates are set fo meet the cost of the benefits acciuing during
2019-20 o be paid when the member refires. and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners.

[ @ Il Health Refirements
Duiing the year @ officers refired early on ill-health grounds at nil cost to Council



LIl Other Operating Income & Expenditure

[:] Surptus/Delicit on Non-Current Assets (excl Investment Properties)

2020/21 2019/20
Proceeds from sale (153,265) (11.608)
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold (excl Investment Properties) 50,827 180,563

(102,438) 168,955

s} Cther Operating Expenditure

2020/21
= B
£

2019/20

(Surplus) / Deficit on Non Cunment Assets 3 (102.438)

{102,438)

168,955

L'l Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
[«]Interest Payable ond Similar Charges

2020/21

2019/20

I

Lease/hire purchase inferast 71|
Bank interest 6,024 12,942
Government Loan Interest 2,680,931 2,501,541

2,687,666 2,518,577

[+] interest ond nvestment Income

Bank Interest 4,806 43,127
Employese car loan interest - -
INIHE Loan Inferest receivable 99,073 107,486
Investment income on Fund Balances - -
Other Investment income 736 1,400

104,615 152,022
I4 Pensions interest costs and expected return on pensions assets

Net interast on the net defined benefit liability (Gsset)

1,659,000 1,416,000



L] Income, Expendilure and changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

| estrnant

2020/21
(277.597) (3065,248)
Expenditure 45,840 52,364
Net income from investment properties (231,757) (252.882)
Changes in Fair Value of investment Propertios - 10,606

201920

&

Charges 2.687.666 - 2,687,666 2.518,577 - 2,518,577
|Interest and Investment income - (104.615) (104.615) - (152.022) (152.022)
Pensions interast cost 1.659.000 - 1,652,000 1,416,000 1,416,000
Qther investment income 45,840 (277.597) (231.757) 52,364 (305.246) (252,882)
Changes in Fair Value of

Investment Properties . - - 10.606 - 10,806

4,392,506 {382.212) 4,010,294

3.997.547

(457,268)

3,540,279

L[ Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
-

General

2020/2}

(8 027.133)

2019/20

7,291 493)

Other

{10,490,976)

(245,000

(18,518,109} (7,536,498}
s} Capital Grants and Donated Assets - Applied

ovaent & Other Go - Condih'ns met and applied in year .

2020/2]

i)
|‘l

@.724022) |

2019/20

(1.336. 562

(4,724,022} {1,336,562)
[4 Capital Grants - Unapplied

District Rate Incorne (69.258,065) (65,481,687)
Revenue Grants {18,518.109) {7.5346.498)
Capital Grants and Contributions (6,536,354) (1,336.562)

(P4.312,528)
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Amnagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Impaimment

Councll has recognised an impaiment of £4,122,639 In the financial yeor. This relates to three leisure centres which were
formally ctosed due to the recent opening of our new South Lakes Leisure Cenire, One of thess lelsure centras has already
been demalished.

Revaluations

The last valuation of freehold and leasehold properties was carrled out as at 31 March 2021 by an independent valuer from
Land and Property Services (LPS). Plaase refer to Note 1a(xx) for further information on revaluation and depreciation policles.
Assets included In the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued on a 5 year rolling basls and under normal circumstances was
orginally proposed at 20% of assefs being subject to a physical valuation each year and the remaining 80% having a deskiop
revaluation carrled out. However due to Covid 19 restrictions during 2019720 year these physical inspections where reduced
and noted In last year's accounts. It was agreed with LPS that an enhanced Inspection regime would be undertaken In Year 4
(2020/21) and Year 5 (2021/22) of the rolling programme t¢ ensure that by the end of the five year cycle 100% of assets will
have been physically inspected (n line with relevant NI Assembly and PHA regulations and guidonce). Increases in valuations
are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. However, gains are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arlse from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
service.

Intanglble Assets, which relate solely to market rights, were also volued by LPS as at 31 March 2019

Arange of categorles of heritage ossets held at various council locations including FE MeWilliam Gallery and Studio, the Civic
Buildings and some Town Holls were valued as at 31 March 2019.

LPS Valuation Report Caveat declaration extract included in their report to Council

*The outbreak of COVID-19, declared by the World Health Organisation as a “Global Pandemic” on the 11th March 2020, hos
and continues to Impact many aspects of dally life and the global economy - with some real estate markets having
experlenced lower lovels of transactional activity and liquidity.

Travel, movement and operational restrictions have been Implemented by many countries. In some cases. “lockdowns” have
been applied to varying degrees and to reflect further *waves” of COVID-19; although these may imply o new stage of the
crisis, they are not unprecedented in the same way s the Initial Impact.

The pandemic and the measures taken to tackle COVID-19 continue to affect economies and real estate markets globalky.
Nevertheless, as at the valuation date property markets are mostly functioning agaln, with transaction volumes and other
relevant evidence at of returning to levels where an adequate quantum of market evidence exists upon which to base
opinions of value. Accordingly. and for the avoldance of doubt. our valuations are not reported as being subject to *‘material
valuation uncertainty” as defined by VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation - Global Standards, except as identifled".

In respect of those assets Identifled (to the value of approximately £15m. which equates to 6% of Councli's NBV of assets) as ot
the valuation date we continue to be faced with an unprecedented set of circumstances caused by COVID-19 and an
absence of relevant/sufficient market evidence on which to base our Judgements. Qur valuation of these assets is therefore
reported as belng subject to ‘material vatuation uncertainty’ as set out in VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation - Global
Stondards. Consequently, in respect of these valuations less cerfainty - and a higher degree of caution - should be attoched
to our valuation thon woutd normally be the case.

For the aveoidance of doubt this explanatory note, including the *material valuation uncertalnty’ declaration, does not mean
that the valugtions connot be relied upon. Rather, this explanatory note has been included to ensure transparency and to
provide further insight as to the market context under which the valuation opinlon was preparad. in rgcognition of the
potentlal for market conditions to move rapldly in response to changes in the control or future spread of COVID-19 we
highlight the Importance of the voluation date®,

Non-operatfional Property, Plant and Equipment (Surplus Assets)
The Councll holds a number of non operational propertlss Included under Surplus Assets in note 11,

2020421

e

Balance at start of year:
Gross carying amaounts 10,000 10,000
Accumulated amortisation - -
Net carrying amount at start of year
Net canying amount at end of year
Comprising:

Gross carrying amounts X 10,000 10,000

31/03/2020

10.000] 10000

10,000 10.000



MISTC DL T L B b e e B e

The following items of Income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income and

Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Investment Properties

31/03/2021

31/03/2020

Rental Income from nvestment Activities 277,597
Direct Operating expenses arising from investment propertios (45,840) (52,364)
Net gain/(loss) 231,757 252,882
The Council Investment propertles consist of shop unlts and offices.

Investment property salary expenses of £25,218 s included In both the expenses above and Salary note 7a.

The following table summarles the movement In the fair value of investment propetties over the yeor:

e e Prope 020 01¢ 0
Balance at start of the year 3,270,000 2,870.000
Additions - 410,606
Disposals - -
Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments - (10.606)

Transfers to/ from Inventories

Transfers to/ from property, plant and equipment

Other changes

0 e Qi end O 2

Valuation process for Investment Propertios

The fair value of the Councll'sinvestment property Is measured annually at each repoiting dote. All valuations are carrled out
externally by an independent valuer from Land and Property Services (LPS). In accordance with the methodologies and bases
for estimate set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

[l Heritage Assets

Arange of categories of Heritage assets held at various council locations including FE McWillam Gal ery and Studio, the Civic

Buildings and some Town Halls were last valued as at 31 March 2019.

Other heritage asset disclosures are included at note Ta(xxl).

g Assols Held for Sale

There are a number of assets that have been fransferred to the Assets Held for Sale category within note 11a.

h Long-Term Assefs - Leased Assets

Pl

Cost or Valuation

At 1 Aprll 2020 276,775 86,465 363,240
Additlons - - g
Disposals g (79.465) (79,465)
At 31 March 2021 276,775 7,000 283,775
Depreciation

At 1 Aprll 2020 229,340 39.527 258,867
Disposals - (34,766) (34,766)
Provided for year 15,811 1,119 16,930
At 31 March 2021 245,151 5,880 251,031
Net Book Value 31,624 1,120 32,744




Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2019 364,586 86,465 451,051

Additlons (1,531 - {1,533)
Disposals (86,278) - (86,278)
At 31 March 2020 276,775 86,465 363,240
Depraciation .

At 1 Aprll 2019 282.830 20,467 312,297
Disposals (64,709 - (64,709)
Provided for year 11,219 10,060 21,279
At 31 March 2020 229,340 39,527 268,867

Net Book Value 47,435 45,938 94,373

| Fair Volue Hierarchy for Surplus Assets
Valu_aﬂon Process for Surplus Assets

The fair value of the Council’s Surplus Assets s measured annually by external valuers. All valuations were cariied out
externally by Land & Property Services, In accordance with the methedalagies and bases for estimation set out In the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,

| Il Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expendifure Incurred in the year is shown in the foble below ncluding the value of assets
acquired under finance leases and PFl contracts), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where
capital expenditure is 1o be flnanced in future years by charges to revenue os assets are used by the Councl, the expenditure
results In an increqse in the Capltal Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expendtture incurred histarlcally by
the Council that is yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 100,597,637 76,336,644
Capital Investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 1 9826966 | 32,329,648
Invastment Properties 1te - 410,606
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute) 5,541,186 1,580,088
Derecognition - Other n (18,858)

Caplfal Receipts 26 {153,265) {11.608) |
Govemment Grants and Cther Contributions 10 (4,724,022) (1.336,562)
Transfers from Earmarked Reserves 26 s g
Sums set aside from Revenue:

Direct Revenue Contributions (1,661.312) (1.673.529) |
Minimum Revenue Provision (6.768.147) (5.837.650)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 103,640,155 100,597,637

Explanation of Movements in Year 2020421 2019/2C

b7 &

Increase in underlying nesd to borrow 3,042,518 25,260,993

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 3,042,518 25,260,993




[ I Future Capital Commitments

14

The Council has an ongoing programme of capital works including the following:

Schemes underway at year end amounted to £2.3m, the maljority of which relates to the purchase of Vehicles & Equipment,
and a number of smaller schermes at contract stage.

Gross Cost Grant Aid Nef Cost
£
Schemes underway 4,435,932 2,306,169

4,435,932 2,129,763 2,306,169

Oil and Fusl 54,809 &0.926
Stores 262,248 322,057
Other Stock 77.801 80,539

Qrd ¢4.858 46

The cost of Inventories written down, recognised as an expense and included In “services’ amounted to £8,805.

BE
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Government Departments

Other Councils

Public corporations and frading funds

Bodles external to general government

Employee car loans

Revenue Grants

Capltal Grants

Interest Recetvable

Capital Debtors

Loans and advances

Finance lease dabtors

Trade debtors

NIHE Loarns 1.024,615 1,149,471
Other 139.707 144,711
Impairment of loans and receivables S .
Contract Receivables - -
Tetal Long-Term Cebtors 1,164,322 1,294,182
4] Short Term Debio 020 019720
Government Departments 8,984,891 6,833,675
Other Counclls 180,306 261,425
Public corporations and trading funds . -
Bodies external to general governmant 236,129 340,911
NIHE loans 124,856 118,377
Employee caricans - -
Revenue Grants - -
Capital Grants 1,253,013 242,508
Interest Recelvable 501 1,467
Capital Dstotors - -
Value Added Tax 1,876,496 2,696,208
Prepayments 339,964 497,864
Finance lease debtors 952 945
Cther 40,372 280,877
Trade recelvables 649,005 445,841
Impairment |oss - Trade recelvables (201,467 (245,728)
Contract Recslvables - 5
Total Short-Term Debtors 13,455,018 11,474,370

Total Debtors

Investments
[:] Long Term Invesiments

Investments - general

14,619,340 12,748,552

2020/21
£

2019/20

Investments - repalrs and renewals

Invastments - capltal fund

|Investments - other

Total Long-term Investments

: 1
g

B Analysed over: 2019/20
<

Money morket deposits

Cther deposits

Tolal Long-term investments = 5




51 Shorl-Term Invastrmenis 2009720

%

Invastrments - general
[Investments - 1epairs and renewars = -
[iInvestments - capital fund =
Investments - other 11,000,000

Money market deposits 2,000,000
QOther depaosits 2,000,000

11,000,000

Total Long Term and Short-term Investments
Note: Short term investments are included within Cash and Cash Equivalents

11,

17 [

o G20 D19/20
Loans re-payable within cne year 15,503,575 17,000,259
FInance Lease Prncipal - 6,762

0 Q7,0

b 020 019/20
Between 1 and 2 years 4,215,686 2,761,922
Between 2 and 5 years 11,821,568 11,282,377
Between 5 and 10 years 15,544,480 13,350,936
in more than 10 yoars 29,399,812 28,584,887

Total Long Term Borrowing 60,985,546 55,989,122

Tetal Borrowing 76,469,121 72,996,143

a 3 2020/21 2019/20
g g

Govermnment Departrments 1,377,786 1,534,682
Other Councills 283,849 237,893
VAT 218,632 244,639
Remuneration due to employees 1,319,532 1,683,727
Accumulated Absences 966,754 1,011,245
Receipts in advance 888,475 1,008,786
COther 5,623,768 7.166,484




[+ Long Tesmn Creckbors
Other creditors falling due cfier more than cne year
Government Departments

2020421
g

Other Councils

Public corporations and trading funds

Bodles external to general government

Rates clawback

[Remuneration dus fo employees

Accumulated Absences

Recelpts In advoance

Trade creditors

Other

Contract Payables

Totat Long Term Creditors

Tolal Creditors

10,608,685

12,916,745

1 Payment of Invoices

The councll has a target, where no other terms are ogreed, of paying suppller invoices within 30 calendar days. During the
year the Council pald 18.970 Invoices totalling £61.216,699. (2019/20 30,225 Involces totalling £88,110,104)

The number of disputed Invoicas was 390.

The Council pald:

17.204 (90.7%) involces with 30 calendar days target; (20,106 (66.5%)- 2019/20)
9.272(48.9%) involces within 10 working days target: (5.713 (19%)- 2019/20)
1,766 (9.3%) Invoices outsicle of the 30 day targst; (10,120 (33.5%)- 2019/20)

The average number of days taken to pay suppliers during the year was 12.24 days. (19.26 days 2019/20)

Increase/
(decreose) in

Balance as ot provision
1 Apiil 2020  during year
£ <

Interest cost
Utilised during Unused amounts and/or discount Balance as at 31

year reversed

g

rate changes

£

March 2021
7

Landfill Closure- e

Cralgavon 2,410,430 29,052 (68,468) - 116,804 2,487,818

Single Status 465,075 35,108 - - 500,183

Legal Issues 1,400,000 609,530 (30,0000 {20,000} - 1,909,530
4,275,505 673,690 (148,468} 114,804 4,897,531

Current Provisions 465,075 35,108 - - - 500,183

Long Term Provisions 3.810.430 638,582 (148,468) (20,000) 116,804 4,397,348

4,275,505

673,690

{148,468) (20,000}

116,804

4,897,531

Comparative Year
Increase in
provision
1 Ap1il 2019 during yeor
£ S

Balance as at

Provisicns

Interest cost

year reversed
£ g

&

Utilised during Unused amounts and/cr discount
rate changes

Restated Balance
as at 31 March

2020
3

Landfill Closure- Cralgavor 3,604,188 (1.049,120) (30,416) (114,222) 2,410,430
Single Status 399,232 65,843 - - 465,075
Legal Issues 500,000 900,000 - 1,400,000

4,503,420 (83,277 (30,418) {114,222) 4,275,505
Current Provisions 399,232 65,843 - - 465,075
Long Term Provislons 4,104,188 (149,120) (30.416) - (114,.222) 3,810,430

4,503,420

(83,277)

(30,416)

(114,222)

4,275,505




Landfill Closure- Craigavon

NI Environment Agency required that an adequate provision Is made for landfill aftercare costs. This was fermally revaiued in
2019/20 by an external company to ensure that the provislon Is an adequate estimate for the landfill cost liablity.

During 2017/18 the Council sought independent external professional advice from ifs financiol advisors, Adingclose regarding
discount rates for landfill. Based on the advice provided. discount rates based on PWLB borrowing rates factored for inflation
have been applied. These have been updated for 2020/21 rates. The movement relating to the discount rotes has been
mitigated via the Provision Disc:ount Rates Reserves in the unusable reserves in Note 27h.

Single Status

This provislon Is set aslde to provide for costs assoclated with @ review of salaries and wages. This process should completed
dwing the 2021/22 flnancial year,

Legal Issues

The provision is set aside for potential legat costs and repayment clalms that are currently on-going.

i Financial Instruments

The Councll has no material exposure to any of the risk types identified below In its dealings with Financial Instrumens.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financlal institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers. A
collective assessment of the outstanding debt balances, was completed based on the Councils credit conirol procedures
and an allowance for Imparment loss for trade receivables has been included.

Liquidity Risk

As the Council has ready access fo borrowings from the Department of Finance's Consolidated Fund, there Is no significont risk
that it will be unable to rqise finance to meet its commitments under Financial Instruments. The maturity analysis of financiat
Habilities is Inciuded In notes 16 to 18. All rade ond other payables are due for payment within one year

Interest rate risk

The Councll is exposed fo rsk In terms of its expaosure fo inferest rate movermnents on its Investments and deposits but the
potential risk and exposure Is minimal during 2020/21. The Councl s In recelpt of loans from the Department of Finance,
however these loans are ot fixed concessionary interest rates that differ from the prevalling market rates.

Foreign Exchange Risk
The Councll has a Euro bank account for payments however due to the size of the bank balance this would not be
considered a material exposure to 10ss arising from movements In exchange rates.

Fair Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans
The Council Is in recelpt of loans from the Department of Finance and other local authorities at concesslonary interest rates
that differ from the prevailing market rates. The fair value of these loans is €90,161.615 broken down as foliows:

4
Government Loans 71,675,760
Government Loans 12,507.165
Market Loans 5,978,690
Total 90,161,615

The fair value of these loans s not incfuded in the provision of services.

The Council made o loan to an organisation at less than market rates (soft loans). Thus the fair volue of the loon would be less
than the omount of the cash lent. The fair value Is included below, however the amount taken to the provision of services is
Immaterial,

Voluntary Body in Receipt of Loan Amount Amount Repayment Due
< g

2020721 2019/20

Armagh Business Centre 28,783 30/06/2028




AR Retirement Benefits
[:] Participation in the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund.,

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of Its officers and other employees, the Council offers retirement benefits.
Although thess benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has ¢ commitment to make the
payments that need t¢ be disclased at the time that employees eam thelr future entitiement.

The Councll parficipates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Penslon Fund administered by the Northermn Ireland
Local Government Officers' Superannuation Commiltee. This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Councll and employees
pay contributions into a fund, calculated af a level intended to balance the pension's liabllities with investment assets.

b Transactions relating to refirerent benefifs - Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Charges:

The Council recognises the cost of retilement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they are eamed
by employess, rather than when the beneiits are eventually pald as pensions.

However, the charge the Council Is required to moke against district rates Is based on the cosh payabls in the yeor, and the

feal cost of retlement benefits is reversed out In the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regutations,
line. in the Movement on Reserves Statement.

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the adjustments
between accounting basts & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Resarves Statement during the yeor:

2020/21 2019/20

€ [
Net cost of servicas:
Current service cost 11,959,000 13,197,000 |
Past service cost/{(gain) 576.000 1,580.000
Net Interest on net defined benefit Liabillty (asset) 1,659,000 1,416,000
Tolal Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services 14,194,000 16,193,000
Movement in Reserves Statement:
Reversal of net charges made for retirement benafits In accordance
with 1AS 19 and the Code (14,194,000 (16,193.000)
Employers’ contributions payabla to scheme 6,754,000 8.371,000
at ad 2] 0 enarg a

440,000 g 000

The service cost figures Include an allowance for administration expenses of €0.160M (1.3%)

a



Liabillity (gains)/losses due to change In assumptions 67,686,000 (6,442,000)
Liability (gains)/losses due to due to demographic changes 5 (9,650,000)
Lability experlence (galns)/icsses arising in the year (2.431.000) (84,000)
Actuarlal (gains)/losses on plan qssets (41.673.000) 20,388,000
otal Qo Q558 e O ed Hhe omprahe o ome and ne o 82.000 4 000
anda nap = Qtio O e o o beano
Reco ation of prese dlue of the eme liabilitie ofe 020 0% /20
Balance as at 1 April 284,670,000 282,938,000
Current service cost 11.959.000 13.197.000
Interest cost 6.513.000 6.749.000
Contributions by meambers 2,029,000 2,055,000
Remeasurement (_gclns) and losses;
Actuarial (gains)/losses arlsing frorm changes In financial assumptions 67,686,000 (6,442,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from demographic changes - (9.650,000)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising on liabllitles from experlence (2,431,000} {84.000)
Other (if applicable) 5 5
Past service costs/(galns) 576,000 1,580,000
Estimated unfunded benefits paid (90,000) (88.000)
Estimated benefits pald (5.672,000) (5.585,000)
Balaonce as at 31 March 345,240,000 284,670,000
Reco ation of prese alue o e eme asse ote 020 01920
Balance as at 1 April 209,458,000 219,760,000
Interast Income 4,854,000 5.333.000
Contributions by members 2,029,000 2,055,000
Contrbutions by employer 6,664,000 8,283,000
Contributions In respect of unfunded benefits 90,000 88,000
Remeasurement gain/(loss) 41,473,000 (20,388,000}
Unfun_ged benefits paid (90.000) (88,000)
Benrefits paid (5,672,000 (5.585,000)
Balance as at 31 March 259,006,000 209,458,000

The expected retum on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying
the current investment policy. Expected ylelds on fixed Interest Investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
Baolance Sheet date. Expected retums on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the

respective markets

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £46.527m (2019720 loss of £15.055m).

Fair Value of Plan Assets 2020721 2019/20

£ 3
Equity Investments 119,919,778 89,229,108
Bonds 92,465,142 81,060,245
Property 23,051,534 20,945,800
Cash 13.727,318 9,844,526
Other 9.842,228 8,378,320

259,006,000 209,458,000

The above asset values are at bid value s required by 1AS 19.

Details of estimates made by the Fund Manager when assessing the falr values of plon assets

The amounts included In the fair value of plon assets far property occupled by the Councll was ni.

92




The Council's share of the Net Penslon Liability ({included in the Balonce Sheet):

259,006,000

201920

L

Falr Value of Employer Assets 209,458,000
Present vatue of funded defined benefit obligation (364,063,000) (283,494,000)
Pension assetl/(liability) of Funded Scheme (105,057,000) (74.036,000)
Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obligation (1,177,000) (1,176,000}
|Net asset/(liabllity) arising from the defined benefit ob_ligﬂon {106,234,000) (75,212,.000)

Armount in the Balance sheet:

Liabllities

Fair Value of Assets In pension scheme

234,000)

259,006,000

(76.212,000)

209.458,000

Present Value of Deflned Benefit Obllgoﬂon

(:365,240.000)

(284,670,000)

Surplus/(deficit} in the Scheme

(106,234,000}

(75,212,000}

mprehansive Income

201920
¢

Actuarial (gains)/iosses 65,255,000 (16.176,000)
Expected Return on Plan Assets (41,673.000) 20,388,000
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive income and

Expendlture 23.582,000 4,212,000
Cumulative actuarial gains and losses 40,536,000 16,954,000
History of experience gains and losses:

Experience (gains) and losses on assats (41,573,000) 20,388,000
Experience (gains) and lossas on llabilities 65,255,000 (16,176,000)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay refirement benefis. The tota
llabllity of £106.234rm has a substantial Impact on the net worfh of the Council as recorded In the Balance Sheet, resulting in o
net liability of £106.234m

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Councll remains healthy, The
deficlt on the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Penslon Fund will be made good by increasad contributions over
the remaining working life of employses, assessed by the scheme actuary.

Anolysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year fo 31
March 2022

31/03/2022
£

17.115,000
2,162,000 6.5%
19,277,000 57.8%

31/03/2022

Projected curnrent cost
Net Interast on the net defined benefit kabillty (asset)

The total contributicns expected to be made to the Northern reland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund by the councll
in the year to 31 March 2022 i £6.521m, of which £0.090m relates to unfunded benefits.



History of experience gains and losses

The actuarlal gains/iosses identified as movements on the Panslons Reserve 2020/21 can be analysed into the following
categorles, measured os a percentage of assets or llabllitles at 31 March 2021.

Experlence galns and losses on Assets : 14,095 9.73%
Experlence galns and losses on Liablities -17.87% -5.68%

b Basis for estimating assets and fabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarlal basls using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be
payable in the future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Council's Fund llabilities
have been assessed by Acon Hewitt Limited. an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Councll Fund being based on
data pertaining to the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2021.

sian scheame assumplions; 2020/21 2019720

Yo %

EQuity investmenits 46.3% 42.6%
Bonds 35.7% 38.7%
Property 8.9% 10.0%
Cash 5.3% 4.7%
Other 38% 0%

Mortality assumpfions:

Longevity at 65 current pensioners: Years Yeors
Men 21.9 21.8
Women 25.1 250

tongevity at 45 for fulure pensioners:

Men 23.3 232

wornen 265 264

Inflation/Pension InCrease Rale 2.70% 2.00%
Salary increase Rate 4.20% 3.50%
Expected Retumn on Assels -1.70% 2.50%
Ciscount Rate 2.10% 2.30%
Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.70% 2.00%

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into refirernent tump surn:

Service 10 April 2009 75% 75%
Service post April 2009 75% 75%

Pension Assumplions Sensilivily Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value (£364.063m)of the funded defined bensfit
abligation as at 31 March 2021 and the projected service cost ( £17.115m) for the perlod ending 31 March 2022 is set out
below.

In eGch case, only the ossumption noted below is altered:; all other assumptlons remain the same and are summarlsed in the
disclosure above



Funded Pension Scheme Banefits

Discount Rate Assumption

Adjusiment 1o discount rate +0.1%p.a. 0.1%p.q.
Present valug of the total obligation 356,782,000 371,344,000
% change in the present value of the total obligation -2,00% 2.00%
Projected service cost 16,533,000 17,714,000
Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.40% 3.50%

Rate of General Increase in Salaries

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.
Present value of the total obligation 365,883,000 362,243,000
% change In the present value of the total obligation 0.50% -0.50%
Projected service cost 17,115,000 17.115,000
Approximate % change In projected service cost 0.00% 0.00%

Rate of Increase to Pansions in Payment and Deferred Pension Assumption

Adjustrnent to pension Increase rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.
Presont value of the total obligation 369,524,000 368,602,000
% change in theé present value of the fotal obligation 1.50% -1.50%
Projected service cost ¥7.714,000 16,633,000
Appraximate % change in projected service cost 3.50% -3.40%

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption

Adjustrment to mortallty age rating assumption® -1 Year +1 Yoaar
Present volue of the total obligation 377,169,000 350,957,000
{% change in the present value of the fotal obligation 3.60% -3.60%
Projected service cost 17.817,000 16,430,000
Approximate % change in projected service cost 4.10% -4.00%

* Arating of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mertallty pattemn of the base table above for an

Individual thot Is 1 year clder than that.

|l Mojor categeries of plan assets os peicentage of total plan assets

The Northemn lreland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund's assets consist of the following categorles, by proportion of the

total assets held:

2020721

%a

20i9/20
%o

Equity investments 45.30r% !
Govermnment Bonds 23.60% 26.10%,
Corporate Bonds 12.10% 12,60
Property 8.90% 10.00%
Cash 5.30% 4.70%
Other 3.80% 4.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

[+] Northetn Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Councll is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to date actuarial valuation was carred
out as at 31 March 2019 (previously March 2016). This valuation Is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuory and updated ta
reflect current conditions and ralled forward to the reporting date of the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource

Accounts as at 31 March 2021

Guaranteed Minimum Pension {GMP) Is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were confracted out of the
state pension prior 1o 6 April 1997. At prasent there Is an inequality of benefits between male and female members who have
GMP. Although the Government intends that GMP should be equalised, at prasent it is not clear how this equalisation will be
Implementead. In July 2014 the Governrment stated an infention to develop fully considered proposals and to publish
guldance when ths work Is completed, but no target dote was given. The impact of any llabllities relating to the Councll is
therefore uncertain and no provision has been made in these financial statements.




s Account

Opening balance
Add: new donated assefs received (condition of use not

met) o 2
Tess: amounts released To The Disincl Fund -
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account

Analysis of Donated Assets Account

The Council has no donated assets.

Mexhes

Opening balance

Add: new caphal grants recelved In advance {condiflon of use nof

met) - -
Tess: amounts released To 1he L.omprehensive Incorme and Expandiiure
Statement

Analysis of Capital Gronts Recelpts in Advance Balance
The Council utitised all Caopital Grants received in year,

In accordance with the Code (and I1AS 37), Councils should disclose by way of note if there is a possible obligation/asset arlsing
fiom past events and whose existence will be conflmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertaln
future events not wholly within the control of the authority, or a present cbligation/assat that arlses from past events but is not
recognised because:

a} It is not probable that an outflow of resources smboedying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle
the obligation, or
b} the amount of the obligation/asset cannot be measured with sufficient reliabllity,

Contingent Liability

Legal:
The Council has a number of ongoing outstanding fegal cases, the outcomes of which are unclear ot this peint in time and are
difficult to pradiict.

Contingent Asset

Legal:

On 17 October 2020, the First-tier Triibunal issued its decision in relation to a dispute concerning the VAT liabllity in respect of
charges for access to sport and leisure facilitles provided by Mid-Ulster District Councll. HMRC contended that the charges
should bear VAT at the standard rate, while Mid-Ulster District Councll confended that the charges In dispute did not attract
VAT

The appeal by Mid-Ulster District Council wos allowed, however pursuant to Rule 39 of the Tribunal Procedure (First-tier Tribunal)
(Tax Chamber) Rules 2009, HMRC applied for permission to appeal. The outcome of this Is still to be decided, therefore, ot this
stage It is too early to assess the iImpact of this decislon on councll finances.



Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

L Other cash flow disclosures
:] Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

A = O » O e O c PIro O O = -
O O C overme ote 020 019 0
[ £

Depreciation 11 8,708,231 7,683,140
Impalrment & downward revalualions (& non-sale
derecognitions) 11 5,217,326 21.345
Armortisation (included with depreclafion above) - -
(Increase)/Decreass in inventorles 14 68,664 (117.078)
(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 15 (1.806.527) (3.723.789)
Increase/(decrease) in iImpairment provision for bad debts 15 (44,261) (20,297)
Increase/(Decrease) In Creditors 18 (2.542,392) (2.837,362)
Payments to NILGOSC 21 7,440,000 7,822,000
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 8 80,827 180,563
AIC/WIP written off to Net Cost of Services 11 18,858 -
Conftributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 19 622,026 (227.914)
Movement in value of investment properties e - 10,606
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 21 - -

17,732,752 8,861,214

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the

provision of services that are investing and financing 2020/21 2019/20

Purchase of shor-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term Investments (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries) -

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term Investments (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and

intfangible assets B (153.265) (11,608)
Capltal grants included in "Taxation & non-speclfic grant
income" 10 (6.536.354) (1.336.562)
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s Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and
short term deposits and investments (considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash
and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconclled

to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

[ £ £
Cash and Bank balances 981,553 1.517.693 789,948
Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 2,000,000 - -
Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 2,000,000 - -
Bank Overdraft = B _
11,981,553 1,517,693 789,948

Council holds monies on behalf of Anderson Trust, a third party Coal Fund which Council administers and makes
annual contributions to the charity on its behalf. As at 31 March 2021 third party investments fotalled £29.889 (2019-

20 £29,289 .

Council administers and operates an Oil Stamp Savings Scheme as part of a Public Health Agency funded project
in which retailers supply saving stamps to Individuals, lodge the funds and Council reimburses the Oil Companles

on redemption of the stamps.

I+ C O afeme Operating A e 020

The cash flows from operafing activities include: £ ]
Interest received ob 104,614 152,022
Interest paid fa 2,687,665 2.518.577
Cash flows from Investing Activities 2020721

£ g
Purchase of PP&E. investment property ond intangible 1M (9.592.636) (30.779.812)
Purchase of Short Term Investrents (not considered to be
cash equivalents) - -
Purchase of Long Term Investrments 5 5
Other Payments for Investing Activities - -
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and
intangible assets 8a 153,265 11.608
Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to
be cash equivalents) - -
Proceeds from Long Term Investmeants - -
Capltal Grants and Contibutions Received 10 6,536,354 1,336,562
Other Receipts from Investing Activities - &
Net Cash flows from invesling Aclivities {2,903,017) (29.431,642)




Cash Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowlng - -
Ofther Receipts from Financing Activities - -
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a finance
lease and on-Balance Sheet PH contracts

Increase/ (Repayment) of Short and Long Term Borrowing 3,492,982 32,320,105
Other payments for Financing Activities = -

Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 3,492,982

b3 Usable Reserves
[+l Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet been used to
finance capltal expenditure.

32,320,105

The Capital Recelpts Reserve s credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales ond other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment
as part of the gain/loss on disposal and pested out via the Movement in Reserves Staterent to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. The reserve Is wiitten down when resources are applied 1o finance new capital expenditure or set
aside fo reduce an authorlty's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitted by statute),

At 1 April = =
Movement

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 8 1563.265 11,608
Capital Recelpts used to finance capltal expenditure (153,265) (11.608)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

caleulated in accordance with statutory requirements . .

Other Movements s -

131 Morch B e N == BT SRR I = T A

[} Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised os Income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. but the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not
been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contiibution shall be fransferred to the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account (within the usable reserves section of the balance sheet), reflecting its status as a capltal
resource avallable fo finance expenditure. This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Staternent.

When. at a future date, the expenditure o be financed from the grant or confribution Is Incurred, the grant or
contibution (or part thereof) shall be transferred from the Capltal Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital
Adjustment Account, reflecting the application of capital resources to finance expenditure. This fransfer is also
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement or in the notes to the accounts.



At April

Movement

Unapplied Copital Grants received in year

1.812,332

Unapplied Capltal Grants fransferred to CAAn year

At 31 March

1,812,332

[+ Capilal Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this section of the act
was repealed under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothemn Ireland) 2011. Councils should disclose detalls

where any of these reserves are earmarked for speclfic purposes.

Capifal Fund

31/03/2021

31/03/2020

[ [
At 1 April 3,848,079 3,848,079
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
Fund - .
Transfers between Capltal Fund & CAA to finance Capital
Expenditure 12 - -
g48. 079 848 079
g
Analysis -
Capiltal Programme 3.848,079
Total 3,848,079

-] Renewal and Repairs Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this section of the act
was repealed under the Local Government Fnance Act (Nothern Ireland) 2011. Councils should disclose details

where any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

03/20
£

03/2020
£

At 1 April

515,517

515,517

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
Fund

Transfer between Renewal and Repair fund and backlog
maintfenance

515517y |

Transfers between Renewal & Repailr Fund & CAA to finance
Capital Expenditure

12

Analysis

Repairs and Renewal

Total

100



[-] Other Balances & Reserves

Other Bala s & Reserve ole D 0 D (20
b )

At 1 April 4,464,335 3,921,729

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General

Fund ' 4b 9.695,408 542,606

Transfer between Renewal and Repadir fund and backlog

maintenance 515,517 -

Transters between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & - -

Q 4.6 60 4 404

Analysis 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
c [

Development Fund 3.161.638 1.271,008
Transformation Fund 2,111,635 1.749.540
Backlog Maintenance 1,975,426 668,787
Financial Assistance ¥ 1,035,783 525,000
Covid Grants 4,890,778

Insurance Fund 1,500,000 250,000
Tolal 14,675,260 4,464,335

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. rather than the amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates 1o cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

|l General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. rather than the amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounfing cost. The taxation position Is

shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Erare d cte 03/20
[ [4

At 1 April 17.834,270 19,797,964
plied Capltal Grants 10,12 (4.724,022) (1.336,562)

Unapplied Capital Grants received in year 26b (1.812,332) -

Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 (1.661.312) (1.873.529)

Depreciation and Impairment adjustment 4 13.925.657 7,785,091

Statutory Provision for financing Capltal Investrment 4 (5.768.147) (6.837.650)

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capltal under

statute 4,12 5541,156 1,580,088

Surplus/(Deficlt) on the Provision of Services CIES (1.169.238) (9.673,761)

Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the

General Fund 4 (9.695.408) (542.606)

Net movements on Pension Reserve 4, 21 7,440,000 7.822.000

Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 4,8 (102,438) 168,955

Ditference between finance and other costs and income

colculated on an accounting basls and finance costs

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 27g (44,491) 58,503

Other Movements 27h 116,804 (114.222)
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LY L nuseable Reserves
-] Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjusiment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisifion, consiruction or enhancement of

those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition. construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment
losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconclling
postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to on historic cost basis,

The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition,

construction ond subsequent costs

The Account aiso contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 Aprll 2008,
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created fo hold such galns.

apiial Ag = . O ofe
[ £

At 1 April 53,654,837 51.297.712
Applied Capital Grants 10, 12 4,724,022 1,336,562
Unapplied Capital Grants fransferred to CAA In year - -
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 1,661,312 1,873,529
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 1" (13.925,557) (7.785.090)
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4,12 5,768.147 5,837,650
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under 4,12 (5.541,156) (1.580.088)
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Sales 4,1 (50,827 (180.563)
Capltal Recelpts used fo finance capital expenditure 4,12 153,265 11,608
Other Movements - CAA Revaluation 27¢ 3113711 2,843,518
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance capital expenditure 12 5 5

04,8

o] Financial Instruments Adjusiment Account

Financial Instruments Adjustiment Account Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
g [

A 1 April B "

Transfers in / out on adoption of IFRS? - Financial instruments & -

Difference between finance and other costs and income 3 - -

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account.
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[ Revaluation Reserve

The Revoluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arlsing from Increases in the value of Its Property,
Flant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the galns are last
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed thraugh depreciation, or

- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 Apiil 2008, the date the reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment

Account,

The purpose of this account is fo build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards or downwards) of
individual assets. All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on
the Provision of Services are mirrcred in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Itis a fundamental
principle of this account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised.
the balance held on the Revaluation Reserve is wiitten off to the Copital Adjustment Account.

< £
At 1 April 89,743,545 85,876,934
Revaluation & Impalrment 11 1,611,795 6,710,129
Movements from associates & joint ventures - -
Other Movernents 27a G130 (2.843,518)

88,241,629 89,743,545

At 31 March

s] Available for Sale Financial Instruments Adjusiment Reserve and Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

Councils need to include a note If relevant or state not applicable.

Ayallgpie 10 a1e » »

At 1 April
Transfers out on adoption of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Revaluation & Impairment

At 1 April
Transfers in on adoption of IFRS ¢ - Financial Instruments

Revaluaiion & Impairment
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[FYPension Reserve

Pension Reserve 31/03/2021 31/03/2620
g <

At 1 April (75.212,000) (63,178,000)

Net Movements on Penslon Reserve 4, 21 (7.440,000) (7.822,000)

Revaluation & Impafment 21 (23,582,000) (4.212.000)

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefils In accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for
post-employment benefits in the Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement as benefits are eamed by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilifies recognised to refiect infiation, changing assumptions

and Investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs

However, statutory arangements require benefits earned 1o be financed as the Council makes employer's
contiibutions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it Is directly responsible. The debit balance
on the Penslons Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earmned by past and current
employees and the résources the Councll has set aside to meet them, The statutory arrangements will ensure that
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

| @l Deferred Capilal Receipts Account

The Deferred Capital Recelpts Account holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for
which cash setflerment has yet to take place. Under statutory arangements, the Councll does not freat these gains
0s usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash recelpts. When the deferred cash
setlement eventually takes place, omounts are transferred fo the Capital Receipis Reserve,

AT April

Other Movernents

[:] Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
balance from accruing for compensated absences eamed but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave
entiiement caried forward af the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements are expected fo require that
the impact on the General Fund Is neutrdlised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

Accumulated Absences Account Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
g £

At 1 April (1.011,245) (952,742)

Difference between finance and other costs and income

calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

caleulated in accordance with statutory requirements 4a 44,491 (58.503)

At 31 March (966,754) (1,011,245)
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Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rafe Reserve covers the arangement, put In place by the Deparment under ifs
amendment to the 2017/18 accounts direction (see DIC circular 17/18), to dllow for mitigation of the costs not
allowed for by Councils who had adopted the HM Treasury Central Govermnment discount rate for long-term
orovisions such as Landfill costs.

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
e €
At 1 Aprit (491.,944) (606,166)

Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 4 (116.804) 114,222

Other Movements N N

Significant Trading Operations

The Council does not have any significant frading operations.

Agency Services

The Council does not engage In any agency services.

Jeint Arrangements

The Council does not have any transactions in this area

Related Party Transactions

A Related Party Transaction is a fransfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regordiess of whether a
price is charged. Related Party Transactions exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely
because of its economic dependence on the Councll o the Government of which it forms part, A reloted party is
one that has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. This includes cases where the related party entity and another entity ore subject
to common conirol but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and
Trade Unions in the course of thelr normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the
Council and the entity is solely that of an Agency (see note 30) these are not deemed to be Related Party
Transactions.

Council received an annuat operating grant and a special one off payment from the Department for
Communifies. During 2020/21 it recsived £7.95m (2019/20 £7.3M) In grant as reported in note 10a.

Council received Covid 19 grants and funding from the Depariment for Communities (£10.6m), Department for
Infrastructure (£0.6m), Depariment of Agricutture, Environment & Rural Affrairs (£1.5M) and HMRC(E1.3m). (19720 -
Department for Communities £0.25m and HMRC £0.09m).

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below. whete o
description of the nature, the amount of the fransaction s as follows:

The Councii paid grants of £505,841 to a number of organisations in which Councillors and Council officers had an
interest. These grants were made with proper consideration of declaratfion of interests.



Membership of External Bodies Coungcillors Grants Other

No A 7
Armagh, Banbridge and Cralgavon Sports Forum 6 31,142 -
East Border Region Board 3 20,000 =
ICBAN 4 15,000 =
National Assoctation of Councillors 8 5 3.280
NILGA 8 - 4,452
PCSP 10 138,346 o
Local Government Parmership Travellers 3 - 500
Education Authority Mestings 11 20,000 8221
Portadown 2000 2 249,937 -
Lough Neagh Parnership Ltd Heritage Lottery 6 31.416 1,266

61 505,841 21.719

Council is represented by 10 Councillors on the Policing & Community Safety Partnership. one of which acts as
Chairperson. During 2020/21 Council provided £138k of funding to the Partnership and annually provides legal,

financial and personne! services for which it received enil grant in 2020721 (2019/20 £nil).

Councillors were also assoclated with the following organisations to which no payments were made during

20/21.
Membership of Externcl Bodies

Armagh City Centre Townscape Heritage Partnership

Brownlow Regeneration Group

City Growth Deal

Community Development Member Reference Group

Communlty Planning Strategic Partnership

East Border Region Members Forum

Local Action Group (LAG)

NI Amenity Council

NILGA Planning and Regeneration Policy and Learning network (Local Economic
development, iInvestment and internaticnal Affairs)

NILGA Pianning and Regeneration Policy and Leaming network (Health, Social
and Enviromental Well-being)

NILGA Planning and Regenerafion Policy and Leaming network (Place Shaping
and Infrastructure)

NILGA Plonning and Regeneration Policy and Laeaming natwork (Elected member
Development)

NILGA Planning and Regeneratfion Policy and Learning network (Reform,
Devolution and Improvement)

Norhern Ireland Housing Council

Northern Ireland Strategic Migration Partnership
Lurgan Townscape Herltage Partnership

Parnership Panel For Northern lreland

Peace IV Partnership

Reserve Cadet Forces and Cadets Association for NI
Somme Advisory Council
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No
5
11

4
1
5
6
12
2
1



Payments were also made During 20/21 to the following Local Authorities

Payment

£
Ards and North Down Borough Council 1.349
Mid and East Antrim Borough Councll 10,200
Lisburn ond Castiereagh City Councill 119,635
Mid Ulster District Council 130,436
Belfast City Councll 38,231
Fermanagh and Omagh District Council 101,633
Derry City and Strabane District Council 39.359
Newry and Mourme 92,189

533,032

k»2 Prior Year Re - statement

Councll has no prcr year iestatements

L= Fvents after the Reporling Period

Council has no events 1o report
34 Date of authorisation for issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financlal statements for Issue on 28 September 2021.
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